
X:\Scott\Projects\SGMA\GSP\MEMO BOD_Chapter 4-5.docx 1 

HERITAGE RANCH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Scott Duffield, General Manager 

 
DATE:  November 15, 2018 
 
SUBJECT: Request to receive and file Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater 

Sustainability Plan Draft Chapters.   
 
 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file Paso Robles Subbasin 
Groundwater Sustainability Plan Draft Chapters, including: 
 

a. Chapter 4. Hydrogeologic Conceptual Model 
b. Chapter 5. Groundwater Conditions 

 
Background  
 
The State Legislature signed the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) into 
law effective January 1, 2015.  The HRCSD formed a Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
(GSA) on June 8, 2017.  Your Board also entered into a Memorandum of Agreement 
(MOA) with four other GSAs in the Paso Basin.  The purpose of the MOA group is to 
develop a single Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) for the entire basin that will be 
considered for adoption by each individual GSA and subsequently submitted to DWR for 
approval.  The GSP must be submitted to DWR by January 31, 2020.  
 
Discussion 
 
The timeline for these draft documents is shown in the table below:  
 
Published on: October 11, 2018 
Received by the Paso Basin Cooperative Committee: October 17, 2018 
Posted on PasoGCP.com: October 24, 2018 
Close of 45-day public comment period: December 10, 2018 

 
 



X:\Scott\Projects\SGMA\GSP\MEMO BOD_Chapter 4-5.docx 2 

These draft documents are posted on the District’s website as well as on the GSP project 
website at www.pasogcp.com. 
 
Comments from the public are being collected using a comment form. The form can be 
found online at www.pasogcp.com.  A paper form to submit by postal mail is also available 
at the District office. 
 
Fiscal Considerations 
 
There are no direct fiscal considerations associated with this item. The cost for the GSP 
work is in the current FY 2018/19 budget. 
 
Results 
 
Approval of the recommended action will ensure the District is working pursuant to the 
MOA and allow our community an opportunity to provide input on the GSP. 
 
  
Attachments:  Draft Chapter 4. Hydrogeologic Conceptual Model 

 Draft Chapter 5. Groundwater Conditions 
 

http://www.pasogcp.com/
http://www.pasogcp.com/


 

 
 

Draft 
Paso Robles Subbasin 

Groundwater Sustainability Plan  
Chapter 4 

 
 

Prepared for the Paso Robles Subbasin 
Cooperative Committee and the 

Groundwater Sustainability Agencies  
 

  October 10, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

DRAFT



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally  
left blank 

 

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

CHAPTER 4. Hydrogeologic Conceptual Model ................................................ 1 
4.1 Subbasin Topography and Boundaries ................................................................................. 1 
4.2 Soils Infiltration Potential ....................................................................................................... 5 
4.3 Regional Geology .................................................................................................................... 7 

4.3.1 Regional Geologic Structures .......................................................................................... 7 
4.3.2 Geologic Formations Within the Subbasin ................................................................... 16 
4.3.3 Geologic Formations Surrounding the Subbasin ......................................................... 17 

4.4 Principal Aquifers and Aquitards........................................................................................ 20 
4.4.1 Alluvial Aquifer .............................................................................................................. 25 
4.4.2 Paso Robles Formation Aquifer..................................................................................... 25 
4.4.3 Aquifer Properties .......................................................................................................... 25 
4.4.4 Confining Beds and Geologic Structures ...................................................................... 27 

4.5 Primary Users of Groundwater ........................................................................................... 28 
4.6 General Water Quality .......................................................................................................... 28 
4.7 Groundwater Recharge and Discharge Areas .................................................................... 29 

4.7.1 Groundwater Recharge Areas Inside The Subbasin .................................................... 29 
4.7.2 Groundwater Discharge Areas Inside the Subbasin ................................................... 31 

4.8 Surface Water Bodies ............................................................................................................ 34 
4.9 Data Gaps in the Hydrogeologic Conceptual Model ......................................................... 36 

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

ii 

LIST OF FIGURES 
Figure 4-1.  Paso Robles Subbasin Topography ............................................................................. 2 
Figure 4-2.  Base of Subbasin as Defined by the Base of the Paso Robles Formation ................. 4 
Figure 4-3.  Paso Robles Subbasin Soil Characteristics .................................................................. 6 
Figure 4-4.  Surficial Geology and Geologic Structures ................................................................. 8 
Figure 4-5.  Cross Sections Locations .............................................................................................. 9 
Figure 4-6.  Geologic Section A-A’ ................................................................................................ 10 
Figure 4-7.  Geologic Section B-B’ .................................................................................................. 11 
Figure 4-8.  Geologic Section C-C’ ................................................................................................. 12 
Figure 4-9.  Geologic Section G-G’................................................................................................. 13 
Figure 4-10.  Geologic Section H-H’ .............................................................................................. 14 
Figure 4-11.  Natural Gas Exploration Well Locations and Geothermal Wells ......................... 18 
Figure 4-12.  Aquifers - Geologic Section B-B’ .............................................................................. 21 
Figure 4-13.  Aquifers - Geologic Section C-C’ ............................................................................. 22 
Figure 4-14.  Aquifers - Geologic Section G-G’............................................................................. 23 
Figure 4-15.  Aquifers - Geologic Section H-H’ ............................................................................ 24 
Figure 4-16.  Potential Recharge Areas ......................................................................................... 30 
Figure 4-17.  Potential Groundwater Discharge Areas ................................................................ 32 
Figure 4-18.  Potential Groundwater- Dependent Ecosystems ................................................... 33 
Figure 4-19.  Surface Water Bodies ................................................................................................ 35 
 

 
 

  

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

iii 

LIST OF TABLES  
 
Table 4-1.  Paso Robles Subbasin Aquifer Hydrogeologic Properties ........................................ 26 
Table 4-2.  Paso Robles Subbasin Specific Yield Estimates .......................................................... 27 
Table 4-3.  Summary of General Water Quality by Area ................................................................... 28 
 
 
 
 

LIST OF APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 4A.  Additional Well Logs Used to Supplement Cross Sections 
Appendix 4B.  Paso Robles Basin GSP:  Identification of Groundwater Dependent Ecosystems 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  1 

CHAPTER 4. HYDROGEOLOGIC CONCEPTUAL MODEL 

This chapter describes the hydrogeologic conceptual model of the Paso Robles Subbasin, 
including the Subbasin boundaries, geologic formations and structures, and principal aquifer 
units.  The chapter also summarizes general Subbasin water quality, the conceptual 
interaction between groundwater and surface water, and generalized groundwater recharge 
and discharge areas.  This chapter draws upon previously published studies, primarily 
hydrogeologic and geologic investigations by Fugro Consultants Inc. completed for San Luis 
Obispo County in 2002 and 2005.  Fugro Consultants’ 2002 and 2005 reports are the definitive 
geologic reports of the Subbasin.  All subsequent investigations, such as the 2016 
groundwater model update, adopted the geologic interpretations of the 2002 and 2005 Fugro 
Consultant reports.  The Hydrogeologic Conceptual Model presented in this chapter is not 
intended to be exhaustive, but is a summary of the relevant and important aspects of the 
Subbasin hydrogeology that influence groundwater sustainability.  More detailed 
information can be found in the original reports (Fugro, 2002 and 2005).  This chapter, along 
with Chapter 3 – Basin Setting, sets the framework for subsequent chapters on groundwater 
conditions and water budgets.    
 

4.1 SUBBASIN TOPOGRAPHY AND BOUNDARIES 

The Subbasin is a structural northwest-trending trough filled with sediments that have been 
folded and faulted by regional tectonics.  The top of the Subbasin is the ground surface.  The 
elevation of the Subbasin ranges from approximately 2,000 feet above mean sea level (msl) at 
the southeastern corner to approximately 600 feet above msl in the northwest where the 
Salinas River exits the Subbasin.  The central part of the Subbasin forms a broad plain with 
relatively minor relief. 
  DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  2 

 
 

 
Figure 4-1.  Paso Robles Subbasin Topography 

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  3 

Figure 4-1 shows the topography of the Subbasin using 100-foot contour intervals. The 
Subbasin is bounded by sediments with low permeability, sediments with poor groundwater 
quality, rock, and structural faults.  In some areas the sediments of the Subbasin are 
continuous with adjacent subbasins.  Specific Subbasin lateral boundaries include the 
following: 
 

• The western boundary of the Subbasin is defined by the contact between the 
sediments in the Subbasin and the sediments of the Santa Lucia Range.  An additional 
section of the western boundary is defined by the San Marcos-Rinconada fault system 
which separates the Paso Robles Subbasin from the Atascadero Subbasin.  

• The northern boundary of the Subbasin is defined by the county line between San Luis 
Obispo County and Monterey County.  This boundary is not defined by a physical 
barrier to groundwater flow; water-bearing sediments are continuous with the Salinas 
Valley Upper Valley Subbasin in Monterey County.   

• The eastern boundary of the Subbasin is defined by the contact between the sediments 
in the Subbasin and the sediments of the Temblor Range.  The San Andreas Fault 
forms the northeastern Subbasin boundary and is approximately parallel to the 
boundary further south.      

• The southern boundary of the Subbasin is defined by the contact between the 
sediments in the Subbasin and the sediments of the La Panza Range.  To the southeast, 
a watershed divide separates the Subbasin from the adjacent Carrizo Plain Basin; 
sedimentary layers are likely continuous across this divide.  

 
The bottom of the Subbasin is generally defined as the base of the Paso Robles Formation, 
which is an irregular surface formed as the result of folding, faulting, and erosion (Fugro, 
2002).  The Subbasin boundary and bottom are not considered absolute barriers to flow 
because some of the geologic units underlying the Paso Robles Formation produce sufficient 
quantities of water, but the water is generally of poor quality and it is therefore not 
considered part of the Subbasin.  
 
Figure 4-2 shows the lateral boundaries of the Subbasin and the approximate depth to the 
bottom of Paso Robles Formation in areas where it is saturated.  The Paso Robles Formation 
is either not present or not saturated east of the San Juan fault system and there is very little 
well data in this portion of the subbasin.  
 

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  4 

 
Figure 4-2.  Base of Subbasin as Defined by the Base of the Paso Robles Formation 

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  5 

4.2 SOILS INFILTRATION POTENTIAL 

Saturated hydraulic conductivity of surficial soils is a good indicator of the soil’s infiltration 
potential.  Soil data from the U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) Natural Resources 
Conservation Service (NRCS) Soil Survey Geographic Database (SSURGO) (USDA NRCS, 
2007) is shown by the four hydrologic groups on Figure 4-3.  The soil hydrologic group is an 
assessment of soil infiltration rates that is determined by the water transmitting properties of 
the soil, which includes hydraulic conductivity and percentage of clays in the soil, relative to 
sands and gravels.  The groups are defined as:  

• Group A – High Infiltration Rate:  water is transmitted freely through the soil; soils 
typlically less than 10 percent clay and more than 90 percent sand or gravel.  

• Group B – Moderate Infiltration Rate:  water transmission through the soil is 
unimpeded; soils typically have between 10 and 20 percent clay and 50 to 90 percent 
sand 

• Group C – Slow Infiltration Rate:  water transmission through the soil is somewhat 
restricted; soils typically have between 20 and 40 percent clay and less than 50 percent 
sand 

• Group D – Very Slow Infiltration Rate:  water movement through the soil is restricted 
or very restricted; soil stypically have greater than 40 percent clay, less than 50 percent 
sand 

The hydrologic group of the soil generally correlates with the hydraulic conductivity of 
underlying geologic units, with lower soil hydraulic conductivity zones correlating to areas 
underlain by clayey portions of the Paso Robles Formation.  The higher soil hydraulic 
conductivity zones correspond to areas underlain by alluvium or areas of coarser sediments 
within the Paso Robles Formation. DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  6 

 
Figure 4-3.  Paso Robles Subbasin Soil Characteristics 

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  7 

4.3 REGIONAL GEOLOGY 

This section provides a description of the geologic formations in the Subbasin.  These 
descriptions are summarized from previously published reports by Fugro (2002 and 2005).  
Figure 4-4 shows the surficial geology and geologic structures of the Subbasin (County of 
SLO, 2007).  Figure 4-5 provides the location of the geologic cross-sections shown on Figure 
4-6 through Figure 4-10.  The selected geologic cross-sections illustrate the relationship of the 
geologic formations that constitute the Subbasin and the geologic formations that underlie 
and surround the subbasin.  The cross-sections are from different reports so the format 
differs but the units are consistent.  Figure 4-6 through Figure 4-8 are from the Paso Robles 
Groundwater Basin Study (Fugro, 2002); Figure 4-9 and Figure 4-10 are from the Paso Robles 
Groundwater Basin Study, Phase II: Numerical Model Development, Calibration, and Application 
(Fugro, 2005). 

4.3.1 REGIONAL GEOLOGIC STRUCTURES 
The base of the Subbasin is locally divided by two semi-parallel bedrock ridges:  the 
San Miguel Dome and the Creston Anticlinorium (Figure 4-4).  These two bedrock ridges are 
often not exposed at the ground surface, but are apparent in the subsurface cross-sections.  
The subsurface expression of the bedrock is illustrated on the cross-sections shown on 
Figure 4-6, which shows the Creston Anticlinorium, and Figure 4-8 which shows the 
San Miguel Dome.  Between the San Miguel Dome and Creston Anticlinorium, there is no 
clear bedrock ridge as shown on Figure 4-7.  This gap allows for sediments on the east side of 
the ridges near Shandon to continue and be connected with sediments on the west side of the 
ridges.    
 
The deepest portion of the Subbasin is west of the San Miguel Dome and north of Paso 
Robles, with over 3,000 feet of sediments (Fugro, 2005).  This deep trough extends through 
the Paso Robles area and shallows progressively to the south.  As shown on Figure 4-6, the 
sediments are generally relatively thin on the order of a few hundred feet in the Creston area.  
East of the San Miguel Dome and near the community of Shandon the Paso Robles Formation 
is over 2,000 feet thick. 
 
The faults within and along the borders of the Subbasin boundaries are shown on Figure 4-6.  
The predominant fault near the eastern side of the Subbasin is the San Andreas Fault.  The 
predominant fault near the western side of the Subbasin is the San Marcos-Rinconada fault 
system.  Within the Subbasin and sub-parallel to the San Andreas Fault are the Red Hill, 
San Juan, and White Canyon faults.  It is unknown to what degree these faults are barriers to 
groundwater flow.  In the center of the Subbasin are the King City fault and various 
unnamed faults.  It is unknown to what degree these internal faults are barriers to 
groundwater flow.  These faults could create compartments in the sediments and limit the 
ability of groundwater to move within the Subbasin.   

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  8 

 
Figure 4-4.  Surficial Geology and Geologic Structures 
DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  9 

 
Figure 4-5.  Cross Sections Locations

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  10 

 
Figure 4-6.  Geologic Section A-A’ 

Source:  Modified from Fugro (2002)  DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  11 

 
Figure 4-7.  Geologic Section B-B’ 

Source:  Modified from Fugro (2002)  DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  12 

 

 

Figure 4-8.  Geologic Section C-C’ 

Source:  Modified from Fugro (2002)  
 

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  13 

 

 

Figure 4-9.  Geologic Section G-G’ 

Source:  Modified from Fugro (2005) 
  

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  14 

 
Figure 4-10.  Geologic Section H-H’ 

Source:  Modified from Fugro (2005) 
  

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  15 

 

Page intentionally left blank 
 

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  16 

4.3.2 GEOLOGIC FORMATIONS WITHIN THE SUBBASIN 

The main criteria used by previous authors for defining which geologic formations 
constitute the groundwater basin are:  
 

1. The formation must have sufficient permeability and storage potential for the 
movement and storage of groundwater such that wells can reliably produce 
more than 50 gallons per minute (gpm) on a long-term basis, and  

2. The groundwater produced from the geologic formation must be of generally 
acceptable quality (Fugro, 2002). DWR (1979) classifies groundwater with a 
conductivity of 3,000 micromhos/centimeter or less as fresh, and therefore of 
acceptable quality.   

 
The only two geologic formations that reliably meet these two criteria are the 
Quaternary-age alluvial deposits and the Tertiary-age Paso Robles Formation. 
Therefore, these are the only two formations that constitute the Subbasin.  A general 
discussion of these two formations is presented below.  
 
ALLUVIUM 

Alluvium occurs beneath the flood plains of the rivers and streams within the Subbasin.  
Figure 4-4 shows the location of the alluvial deposits, labeled as Quaternary alluvium, 
identified as Qa.  These deposits are typically no more than 100 feet thick and comprise 
coarse sand and gravel with some fine-grained deposits.  The alluvium is generally 
coarser than the Paso Robles Formation, with higher permeability that results in well 
production capability that often exceeds 1,000 gpm.  
 
PASO ROBLES FORMATION 

The largest volume of sediments in the Subbasin are in the Paso Robles Formation.  This 
formation has sedimentary layers up to 3,000 feet thick in the northern part of the 
Estrella area and up to 2,000 feet near Shandon.  Figure 4-4 shows the location of the 
Paso Robles Formation deposits, identified as QTp.  Throughout most of the Subbasin 
the Paso Robles Formation sediments have a thickness of 700 to 1,200 feet. 
 
The Paso Robles Formation is derived from erosion of nearby mountain ranges.  
Sediment size decreases from the east and the west, becoming finer towards the center 
of the Subbasin, indicating sediment source areas are both to the east and west.  The 
Paso Robles Formation is a Plio-Pleistocene, predominantly non-marine geologic unit 
comprising relatively thin, often discontinuous sand and gravel layers interbedded with 

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  17 

thicker layers of silt and clay.  The formation was deposited in alluvial fan, flood plain, 
and lake depositional environments.  The formation is typically unconsolidated and 
generally poorly sorted.  The sand and gravel beds in the Paso Robles Formation have a 
high percentage of eroded Monterey shale and have lower permeability compared to 
the overlying alluvial unit.  The formation also contains minor amounts of gypsum and 
woody coal. 
 
Poor quality groundwater with elevated concentrations of iron, manganese, and in 
some cases hydrogen sulfide odor have been observed within deeper portions of the 
Paso Robles Formation in some areas.  
 

4.3.3 GEOLOGIC FORMATIONS SURROUNDING THE SUBBASIN 

Underlying and surrounding the Subbasin are older geologic formations that either 
typically have low well yields or have poor quality water.  In general, the geologic units 
underlying the Subbasin include: 
 

1. Tertiary-age or older consolidated sedimentary beds; 
2. Cretaceous-age metamorphic rocks; and 
3. Granitic rock.  

 
Figure 4-11 shows the location of oil and gas exploration wells drilled in the Subbasin.  
These oil and gas wells help identify the depth and extent of the geologic formations 
that surround and underlie the Subbasin. 

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  18 

 
Figure 4-11.  Natural Gas Exploration Well Locations and Geothermal Wells 

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  19 

PANCHO RICO FORMATION 

The Pancho Rico Formation (Tp) is a Pliocene-age marine deposit found mostly in the 
northern portion of the study area.  In places it appears to be time-correlative to the 
Paso Robles Formation, and may be in lateral contact as a facies change.  The unit 
predominantly consists of fine-grained sediments up to 1,400 feet thick that yield low 
quantities of water.  The Pancho Rico Formation additionally has poor water quality 
associated with tar sands that are present at the bottom of this formation (State Division 
of Mines, 1974). 
 
SANTA MARGARITA FORMATION 

The Santa Margarita Formation (Tsm) is an upper Miocene-age marine deposit, 
consisting of a white, fine-grained sandstone and siltstone with a thickness of up to 
1,400 feet.  The unit is found beneath most of the Subbasin.  The Santa Margarita 
Formation is relatively permeable, but is not considered part of the Subbasin because 
the water quality is usually very poor.  The geothermal waters contained in the 
Santa Margarita Formation in this area are often highly mineralized and characterized 
by elevated boron concentrations that restrict agricultural uses.  
 
MONTEREY FORMATION 

The Miocene-age Monterey Formation (Tm) consists of interbedded argillaceous and 
siliceous shale, sandstone, siltstone, and diatomite.  The unit is as great as 2,000 feet 
thick in the study area, and is often highly deformed.  Wells in the Monterey Formation 
are generally of too low yield to consider the Monterey Formation part of the Subbasin; 
although isolated areas in the Monterey Formation can yield more than 50 gpm. 
Additionally, groundwater produced from the Monterey Formation often has high 
concentrations of hydrogen sulfide, total organic carbon, manganese, and iron.  
 
VAQUEROS FORMATION 

The marine Oligocene-age Vaqueros Formation (Tv) is a highly cemented fossiliferous 
sandstone that reaches a thickness up to 200 feet.  Springs in the Vaqueros Formation 
with flows up to 25 gpm are common in canyons on the western and southern sides of 
the study area.  Most water wells tapping this formation produce less than 20 gpm.  
Generally, the quality of water in this unit is good, though hard due to the calcareous 
cement within the rock.  
 
 
 

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  20 

METAMORPHIC AND GRANITIC ROCKS 

The southern and western edges of the Subbasin are bordered by Cretaceous-age 
metamorphic and granitic rock.  The metamorphic rock units include the Franciscan, 
Toro, and Atascadero Formations.  The Franciscan consists of discontinuous outcrops of 
shale, chert, metavolcanics, graywacke, and blue schist, with or without serpentinite.  
The Toro Formation (Kt) is a highly consolidated claystone and shale that does not 
typically yield significant water to wells.  The Atascadero Formation (Ka) is highly 
consolidated, but does have some sandstone beds that yield limited amounts of water to 
wells.  
 
The granitic rock unit (Kgr) lies east of the Rinconada fault system, south of Creston, 
east of Atascadero, and in the area northwest of the City of Paso Robles.  The granitic 
rocks are often capped by a layer of granular decomposed granite that may be 
weathered to clay.  This decomposed granite may be up to 80 feet in thick and may 
contain limited amounts of groundwater. 

4.4 PRINCIPAL AQUIFERS AND AQUITARDS 

Water-bearing sand and gravel beds that may be laterally and vertically discontinuous 
are generally grouped together into zones that are referred to as aquifers.  The aquifers 
can be vertically separated by fine-grained zones that can impede movement of 
groundwater between aquifers.  Two aquifers exist in the Subbasin: 
  

• A relatively continuous aquifer comprising alluvial sediments that underlie 
streams;  

• An interbedded and discontinuous aquifer comprising sand and gravel lenses in 
the Paso Robles Formation.   

 
Figure 4-4 shows the location of geologic sections that were used to depict the aquifers 
in the subsurface.  Figure 4-12 through Figure 4-15 show the aquifers and model layers 
in profile, which are interpreted from the geologic logs, geophysical logs, groundwater 
levels, and water quality (Fugro, 2002 and 2005).  For the GSP several additional well 
logs were added to the sections to refine the extent of the aquifers.  These logs have 
been labeled with the state well inventory number (e.g. E0188061).  Appendix 4A 
contains the well logs used to update the sections.   
 

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  21 

 
Figure 4-12.  Aquifers - Geologic Section B-B’ 

Source:  Modified from Fugro (2005) 
  

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  22 

 
Figure 4-13.  Aquifers - Geologic Section C-C’ 

Source:  Modified from Fugro (2005) 
  

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  23 

 
Figure 4-14.  Aquifers - Geologic Section G-G’ 

Source:  Modified from Fugro (2005) 
  

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  24 

 
Figure 4-15.  Aquifers - Geologic Section H-H’ 

 
Source:  Modified from Fugro (2005) DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  25 

4.4.1 ALLUVIAL AQUIFER 

The unconfined Alluvial Aquifer is generally composed of saturated coarse-grained 
sediments and occurs along Huer Huero Creek, the Salinas River, and the Estrella River; the 
extent of this aquifer is shown on Figure 4-4.  The alluvial aquifer varies in thickness, but is 
generally about 100 feet thick.  The Alluvial Aquifer is highly permeable.  Wells screened in 
the alluvial aquifer can yield up to a 1,000 gpm (Fugro, 2005). 
 

4.4.2 PASO ROBLES FORMATION AQUIFER 

Geologic information reported in Fugro (2002) suggests that the sand and gravel zones that 
constitute the Paso Robles Formation Aquifer are generally thin, discontinuous, and are 
usually separated vertically by relatively thick zones of silts and clays.  Figure 4-4 shows the 
extent of the Paso Robles Formation in the Subbasin.  In general, the sand and gravel zones 
occur throughout the Paso Robles Formation, although they may be locally discontinuous or 
absent in some areas. As shown on Figure 4-14, near Creston the shallow sand and gravel 
zones appear to be disconnected from other parts of the Paso Robles aquifer by faults and 
structural folds.  The shallow aquifer zone near Creston may be an isolated aquifer area. 
 

4.4.3 AQUIFER PROPERTIES 

Data reported in Fugro (2002) were reviewed to estimate representative aquifer hydraulic 
properties.  Most aquifer tests have been conducted in the Estrella and Creston areas.  
Estimated aquifer properties are summarized in Table 4-1.   
   

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  26 

Table 4-1.  Paso Robles Subbasin Aquifer Hydrogeologic Properties 

Well 
Location 

Test 
Duration 
(hours) 

Flow 
(gpm) 

Well 
Depth 
(feet) 

Perforated 
Interval 

Transmissivity 
(gpd/ft) 

Q/s 
(gpm/ft) 

Hydraulic 
Conductivity 

(ft/day) 
Alluvial Aquifer 

28S/13E-36 24 367 70 40 186,300 68 620 
Paso Robles Formation Aquifer 

27S/12E-09 72 300 450 170 8,800 4.9 6.9 
26S/12E-22 12 220 430 100 900 1.2 1.2 
25S/11E-24 12 150 350 90 800 0.62 1.2 
27S/12E-18 8 140 225 35 4,100 3 15.7 
26S/12E-20 48 115 400 50 7,600 10 20 
26S/12E-36 24 400 660 280 8,800 5.1 4.2 
26S/12E-35 18 690 830 370 7,900 4.9 2.9 
27S/14E-18 24 600 740 220 6,100 5.5 3.7 
26S/13E-16 24 200 820 350 3,100 2.63 1.2 
26S/12E-25 24 500 730 340 5,700 3.6 2.2 
25S/13E-30 24 600 720 260 6,900 79 3.5 

26S/13E-7 24 600 825 380 3,200 3 1.1 
26S/13E-7 24 600 990 610 5,000 4.2 1.1 

24S/11E-34 24 850 612 100 2,805 4.5 3.8 
Source: Fugro, 2002 

 
Based on limited aquifer property data available for the Alluvial Aquifer, the transmissivity 
may be in the range of 150,000 to 200,000 gallons per day per foot (gpd/ft); or between 20,000 
and 27,000 square feet per day (ft2/day).  Hydraulic conductivity of the Alluvial Aquifer may 
be over 500 feet per day (ft/d).   
 
The estimated transmissivity of the Paso Robles Formation Aquifer ranges between 
800 gpd/ft and about 9,000 gpd/ft; or between 100 and 1,200 ft2/day.  The geometric mean of 
the tabulated transmissivity values for the shallow aquifer zone is about 3,500 gpd/ft, or 
470 ft2/day.     
 
The estimated hydraulic conductivity of the Paso Robles Formation Aquifer ranges from 
about 1 ft/d to about 20 ft/d.  The geometric mean of the tabulated hydraulic conductivity 
values for the Paso Robles Formation Aquifer is 5 ft/d.   
 
Limited data exist to assess the confined storage properties, such as storativity, of the Paso 
Robles Formation aquifer (Fugro, 2002).  Table 4-2 summarizes reported estimates of specific 
yield for unconfined portions of the aquifers.  Average specific yield was estimated by 
analyzing 10 to 20 of the deepest well completion logs for each area.  Each lithologic interval 
was assigned a specific yield by comparison of the formation description with published 
estimates based on extensive field and laboratory investigations conducted in southern 

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  27 

coastal basins by the DWR and modified for the Paso Robles Formation (DWR, 1958).  The 
assigned specific yield was then weighted according to the thickness of each bed and 
averaged over the entire depth of the well (Fugro, 2002).  Results of this analysis suggested 
that a representative average value for specific yield for the Paso Robles Formation in the 
Subbasin was 0.09.  This specific yield may be low.  Average specific yields for 
unconsolidated sand and gravel sedimentary aquifers are commonly between 0.1 and 0.3 
(Driscoll, 1986).  
 

Table 4-2.  Paso Robles Subbasin Specific Yield Estimates 

Area Number 
of Wells 
Used to 

Calculate 

Average 
Estimated 
Specific 

Yield 
Creston Area 47 0.09 
Estrella 20 Not 

provided 
San Juan 5 0.10 
Shandon 20 0.08 
North and South Gabilan 20 0.09 
Basin Wide Average  0.09 

 
Estimates of vertical hydraulic conductivity for each of the aquifers were not in reports from 
previous studies for the Subbasin. Estimates of vertical hydraulic conductivity incorporated 
into the basin-wide groundwater model are discussed in an appendix to Chapter 6. 
 

4.4.4 CONFINING BEDS AND GEOLOGIC STRUCTURES 

There is limited information regarding the continuity of stratigraphic features in the Subbasin 
that restrict groundwater flow within the Subbasin.  Conceptually, the presence of laterally 
continuous zones of fine-grained strata within the Paso Robles Formation can restrict vertical 
movement of groundwater.  These fine-grained zones are generally shown on the sections on 
Figure 4-12 through Figure 4-15.  These figures show that the fine-grained strata are likely 
more continuous than the sand and gravel layers.  These fine-grained zones act as confining 
beds, and are the cause of the artesian wells that were historically reported in the Subbasin. 
Fine-grained layers that limit vertical movement of groundwater appear to be more prevalent 
in the Estrella and Creston areas than in the eastern portion of the Shandon area.  This may 
indicate that infiltration and recharge is more limited to the west.    
 
There is some anecdotal evidence that subsurface geologic structures such as folds and faults 
may affect groundwater flow in the Subbasin.  Additional investigations would be needed to 
characterize the effect of structures on groundwater flow. 

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  28 

4.5 PRIMARY USERS OF GROUNDWATER  

The primary groundwater users in the Subbasin include municipal, agricultural, rural 
residential, small community water systems, and small commercial entities.  Municipal, 
domestic, and agricultural demands in the Subbasin currently rely almost entirely on 
groundwater.  The municipal sector pumps primarily from the Paso Robles Aquifer.  The 
agriculture sector uses groundwater from the Alluvial Aquifer and the Paso Robles Aquifer. 
 

4.6 GENERAL WATER QUALITY 

This section presents a general discussion of the natural groundwater quality in the Subbasin, 
focusing on general minerals.  The general water quality of the Subbasin described in this 
section is a summary of results in the Fugro 2002 report.  A more complete discussion of the 
distribution and concentrations of specific constituents is presented in Chapter 5:  Current 
Conditions. 
 
Groundwater in the Subbasin is generally suitable for drinking and agricultural uses.  The 
two main water types found in the Subbasin are calcium bicarbonate and sodium 
bicarbonate.  Calcium-bicarbonate type is the most prominent and is found in the Creston 
and San Juan areas.  Sodium-bicarbonate is the second most dominant water type and is 
found in the Estrella and Shandon areas.  Minor areas of sodium-chloride type water can be 
found in the eastern portion of the Subbasin and near Cholame Valley.  In the northwest 
portion of the Subbasin, magnesium bicarbonate waters are found in the San Miguel area and 
a mixed water type is seen in the Bradley area.  A summary of general water quality as 
indicated by average total dissolved solids (TDS), chloride (Cl), and nitrate (NO3) 
concentrations in groundwater is provided in Table 4-4 (Fugro 2002). 
  

Table 4-3.  Summary of General Water Quality by Area 

Area TDS (ppm) Cl (ppm) NO3 (ppm) 
  Avg Min Max Avg Min Max Avg Min Max 
Creston  490 190 1620 112 25 508 16 2 41 
San Juan  753 160 2170 162 13 699 18 ND1 56 

Shandon  606 270 1610 110 31 451 13 5.6 35 
Estrella  624 350 1270 126 32 572 9 ND 30 
Bradley  897 400 1280 131 40 400 14 ND 55 
Gabilan 745 370 1320 87 38 209 39 11 71 

1ND = Non-detect.  For the purpose of computing an average, half the detection limit was used. 
 

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  29 

4.7 GROUNDWATER RECHARGE AND DISCHARGE AREAS 

Areas of significant, natural, areal recharge and discharge within the Paso Robles Subbasin 
are discussed below.  Quantitative information about all natural and anthropogenic recharge 
and discharge is provided in Chapter 6: Water Budgets. 
 

4.7.1 GROUNDWATER RECHARGE AREAS INSIDE THE SUBBASIN 

In general, natural areal recharge occurs via the following processes: 
 

1.  Distributed areal infiltration of precipitation, and 
2.  Infiltration of surface water from streams and creeks. 

 
Figure 4-16  is a map that ranks soil suitability to accommodate groundwater recharge based 
on five major factors that affect recharge potential, including: deep percolation, root zone 
residence time, topography, chemical limitations, and soil surface condition.  The map1 was 
developed by the California Soil Resource Lab at UC Davis and the University of California 
Agricultural and Natural Resources Department. 
 
Areas with excellent recharge properties are shown in green. Areas with poor recharge 
properties are shown in red.  Not all land is classified, but this map provides good guidance 
on where natural recharge likely occurs. 
   
 

                                                
1 Figure 4-16 shows the Soil Agricultural Groundwater Banking Index (SAGBI) map for the Paso Robles Subbasin.  While 
the UC Davis database title SAGBI includes the term “banking”, its use in this section is strictly as a dataset for evaluating 
recharge potential in the basin. 
 

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  30 

 
Figure 4-16.  Potential Recharge Areas

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  31 

4.7.2 GROUNDWATER DISCHARGE AREAS INSIDE THE SUBBASIN 

Natural groundwater discharge areas within the Plan area include springs and seeps, 
groundwater discharge to surface water bodies, and evapotranspiration (ET) by 
phreatophytes.  Springs and seeps identified in the National Hydrology Dataset (NHD), and 
shown on Figure 4-17, tend to be located in the foothills of the Santa Lucia and Temblor 
mountain ranges.  Based on the elevation of mapped springs and seeps, it is likely that these 
discharge groundwater from shallow, and possibly perched aquifer units.  Groundwater 
discharge to streams – primarily, the Salinas River and Estrella River – has not been mapped 
to date.  Instead, areas of potential groundwater discharge to streams are identified using the 
groundwater flow model.  Orange areas on Figure 4-17 represent streams in the model where 
simulated average groundwater discharge to the stream reach is at least 10 acre-feet per year.  
In contrast to mapped springs and seeps, which are derived from groundwater in the 
Paso Robles Formation, groundwater discharge to streams is derived from the Alluvium.  
 
Figure 4-18 shows the distribution of potential groundwater-dependent ecosystems (GDEs) 
and Natural Communities Commonly Associated with Groundwater (NCCAG) within the 
Plan area.  In areas where the water table is sufficiently high, groundwater discharge may 
occur as ET from phreatophyte vegetation within these GDEs.  Appendix 4B describes 
methods used to determine the extent and type of potential GDEs.  Figure 4-18 shows only 
potential GDEs.  There has been no verification that the locations shown on this map 
constitute groundwater dependent ecosystems.  Additional field reconnaissance is necessary 
to verify the existence of these potential GDEs. 

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  32 

 
Figure 4-17.  Potential Groundwater Discharge Areas 

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  33 

 
Figure 4-18.  Potential Groundwater- Dependent Ecosystems 

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  34 

4.8 SURFACE WATER BODIES 

Figure 4-19 shows the rivers in the Subbasin that are considered significant to the 
management of groundwater in the Subbasin.  Significant streams in the Subbasin include the 
Salinas River, the Estrella River, Huer Huero Creek, San Juan Creek, Dry Creek, and Shedd 
Canyon.  These rivers and creeks are ephemeral, and during most of the year the streams lose 
water to the shallow aquifers.  A complete description and quantification of the 
stream/aquifer interaction is included in Chapters 5 and 6.  There are no natural lakes in the 
Subbasin.   
 
There are no reservoirs within the Subbasin; however, there are two reservoirs in the 
watershed.  The Salinas Dam south of the Subbasin on the Salinas River forms 
Santa Margarita Lake.  The Salinas Dam was constructed in the early 1940s as an emergency 
measure to provide adequate water supplies for Camp San Luis Obispo.  The United States 
Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) now has jurisdiction over the dam and reservoir facilities.  
The City of San Luis Obispo has an agreement with USACE to divert the entire yield of 
Santa Margarita Reservoir for water supply.  Nacimiento Reservoir lies just outside of the 
Subbasin to the northwest.  The reservoir discharges to the Nacimiento River, which crosses 
the northwest corner of the Subbasin.  
 

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  35 

 
Figure 4-19.  Surface Water Bodies 

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018  36 

4.9 DATA GAPS IN THE HYDROGEOLOGIC CONCEPTUAL MODEL 

All hydrologic conceptual models contain a certain amount of uncertainty, and can be 
improved with additional data and analysis.  The hydrogeologic conceptual model of the 
Paso Robles Subbasin could be improved with certain additional data and analyses.  Several 
data gaps are identified below.   
 
AQUIFER CONTINUITY 

Aquifer continuity has a significant impact on how projects and management actions in one 
part of the Subbasin may influence sustainability in other parts of the Subbasin.  As noted 
earlier, the Paso Robles aquifer comprises many discontinuous sand and gravel beds.  
However, Figure 4-12 shows a previous interpretation of a deep sand and gravel zone that is 
relatively continuous across the Subbasin.  The continuity of this zone may prove to be 
important in how effective various projects and programs may promote sustainability.  The 
extent and continuity of the Paso Robles Aquifer should be confirmed through existing or 
new well logs or other methods such as aerial geophysics.  This is particularly important in 
the areas around Shandon and San Juan.   
 
FAULT INFLUENCE ON GROUNDWATER FLOW 

Southeast of the City of Paso Robles is an interbasin fault.  It is unknown whether this fault 
and others are barriers to groundwater flow.  If these interbasin faults are barriers to 
groundwater flow, they could compartmentalize the Subbasin and have a significant impact 
on where projects must be located in order to achieve sustainability.  It may be possible to get 
a better understanding of the influence of these faults by performing aquifer tests and 
geophysical surveys in the vicinity of these faults.   
 
VERTICAL GROUNDWATER GRADIENTS 

There are no nested wells to demonstrate vertical hydraulic gradients.  Demonstrating 
vertical gradients could be important to assess vertical flows between the Alluvium and the 
Paso Robles Aquifer as well as vertical flows within the Paso Robles Aquifer. 
 

DRAFT



 

 
 

Draft 
Paso Robles Subbasin 

Groundwater Sustainability Plan  
Chapter 5 

 
 

Prepared for the Paso Robles Subbasin 
Cooperative Committee and the 

Groundwater Sustainability Agencies  
 

   October 10, 2018 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally  
left blank 

 

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 
 iii 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

CHAPTER 5. Groundwater Conditions ............................................................. 5-1 
5.1 Groundwater Elevations ..................................................................................................... 5-1 

5.1.1 Alluvial Aquifer ............................................................................................................. 5-2 
5.1.2 Paso Robles Formation Aquifer.................................................................................... 5-6 
5.1.3 Vertical Groundwater Gradients ................................................................................ 5-21 

5.2 Change in Groundwater Storage ...................................................................................... 5-23 
5.2.1 Alluvial Aquifer ........................................................................................................... 5-23 
5.2.2 Paso Robles Formation Aquifer.................................................................................. 5-25 

5.3 Seawater Intrusion ............................................................................................................. 5-27 
5.4 Subsidence .......................................................................................................................... 5-27 
5.5 Interconnected Surface Water ........................................................................................... 5-27 

5.5.1 Depletion of interconnected surface water................................................................ 5-30 
5.6 Groundwater Quality Distribution and Trends .............................................................. 5-32 

5.6.1 Groundwater Quality Suitability for Drinking Water .............................................. 5-32 
5.6.2 Groundwater Quality Suitability for Agricultural Irrigation .................................. 5-32 
5.6.3 Distribution and Concentrations of Point Sources of  

         Groundwater Constituents ....................................................................................... 5-33 
5.6.4 Distribution and Concentrations of Diffuse or Natural Groundwater 

          Constituents .............................................................................................................. 5-35 
5.6.5 Groundwater Quality Surrounding the Paso Robles Subbasin ............................... 5-43 

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 
 iv 

LIST OF FIGURES 
 
Figure 5-1.  Location of Wells used for the Groundwater Elevation Assessments .................. 5-3 
Figure 5-2.  Groundwater Elevation Contours for the Alluvial Aquifer ................................... 5-5 
Figure 5-3.  Spring 1997 Paso Robles Formation Aquifer Groundwater  

                Elevation Contours ................................................................................................. 5-8 
Figure 5-4.  Fall 1997 Paso Robles Formation Aquifer Groundwater Elevation Contours ...... 5-9 
Figure 5-5.  Paso Robles Formation Aquifer Spring 2017 Groundwater  

                Elevation Contours ............................................................................................... 5-11 
Figure 5-6.  Paso Robles Formation Aquifer Fall 2017 Groundwater Elevation Contours .... 5-12 
Figure 5-7.  Paso Robles Formation Aquifer Change in Groundwater  

                Elevation – Spring 1997 to Spring 2017 ............................................................... 5-14 
Figure 5-8.  Paso Robles Formation Aquifer Change in Groundwater  

                Elevation – Fall 1997 to Fall 2017 ......................................................................... 5-15 
Figure 5-9.  Groundwater Elevation at Paso Robles Formation Aquifer  

                Well 25S/12E-26L01............................................................................................... 5-17 
Figure 5-10.  Groundwater Elevation at Paso Robles Formation Aquifer  

                  Well 26S/15E-20B02 ............................................................................................. 5-18 
Figure 5-11.  Groundwater Elevation at Paso Robles Formation Aquifer  

                  Well 27S/13E-28F01 ............................................................................................. 5-19 
Figure 5-12.  Climatic Periods in the Paso Robles Subbasin..................................................... 5-20 
Figure 5-13.  Vertical Groundwater Gradients near San Miguel ............................................. 5-22 
Figure 5-14.  Estimated Cumulative Change in Groundwater Storage in  

                  Alluvial Aquifer .................................................................................................. 5-24 
Figure 5-15.  Estimated Cumulative Change in Groundwater Storage in Paso Robles 

                  Formation Aquifer .............................................................................................. 5-26 
Figure 5-16.  Interconnected and Non-Interconnected Surface Waters .................................. 5-28 
Figure 5-17.  Locations of Interconnected Surface Waters ....................................................... 5-29 
Figure 5-18.  Estimated Annual Depletion of Interconnected Surface Water ......................... 5-31 
Figure 5-19.  Location of Potential Point Sources of Groundwater Contaminants ................ 5-34 
Figure 5-20.  TDS Regional Distribution and Trends ................................................................ 5-36 
Figure 5-21.  Chloride Regional Distribution and Trends ........................................................ 5-38 
Figure 5-22.  Nitrate Regional Distribution and Trends ........................................................... 5-41 

 
 

  

DRAFT



 

DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 
 v 

LIST OF TABLES  
 
Table 5-1.  Potential Point Sources of Groundwater Contamination ...................................... 5-33 
Table 5-2.  TDS Concentration Ranges and Averages .............................................................. 5-35 
Table 5-3.  Chloride Concentration Ranges and Averages ....................................................... 5-37 
Table 5-4.  Sulfate Concentration Ranges and Averages .......................................................... 5-39 
Table 5-5.  Nitrate Concentration Ranges and Averages .......................................................... 5-40 
Table 5-6.  Boron Concentration Ranges and Averages ........................................................... 5-42 
Table 5-7.  Gross Alpha Concentration Ranges and Averages ................................................ 5-43 

DRAFT



 

5-1 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

CHAPTER 5. GROUNDWATER CONDITIONS  

This chapter describes the current and historical groundwater conditions in the Alluvial 
Aquifer and the Paso Robles Formation Aquifer in the Paso Robles Subbasin.  In accordance 
with the SGMA emergency regulations §354.16, current conditions are any conditions 
occurring after January 1, 2015.  By implication, historical conditions are any conditions 
occurring prior to January 1, 2015.  The chapter focuses on information required by the GSP 
regulations and information that is important for developing an effective plan to achieve 
sustainability.  The organization of Chapter 5 aligns with the five sustainability indicators 
applicable to the Subbasin including: 
 

1. Chronic lowering of groundwater elevations,  
2. Changes in groundwater storage,  
3. Seawater intrusion, 
4. Subsidence,  
5. Depletion of interconnected surface waters, and  
6. Groundwater quality.  

 

5.1 GROUNDWATER ELEVATIONS 

The following assessment of groundwater elevation conditions is largely based on data from 
the San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District’s (SLOFCWCD) 
groundwater monitoring program.  Groundwater levels are measured by the SLOFCWCD 
through a network of public and private wells in the Subbasin.  Additional groundwater 
elevation data for wells were obtained from other available data sources, including the 
California Statewide Groundwater Elevation Monitoring (CASGEM) database, USGS, and 
other regulatory compliance programs.  Locations of the wells (about 50 to 55 depending on 
year) used for the groundwater elevation assessment are shown on Figure 5-1.  Data from 
some of the wells on this figure were collected under confidentiality agreements.  To remain 
consistent with these confidentiality agreements, the well owner information and specific 
locations for these wells are not provided in this GSP.   
 
The set of wells shown on Figure 5-1 were selected from a larger set of monitor wells in the 
SLOCFCWCD database based on the following criteria: 
 

• The wells have groundwater elevation data for 1997 and/or 2017;  
• Sufficient information exists to assign the well to either the Alluvial Aquifer or Paso 

Robles Formation Aquifer; and 
• Groundwater elevation data were deemed representative of static conditions based on 

a check of consistency with nearby wells. 

DRAFT



 

5-2 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

Additional information on the monitoring network is provided in Chapter 8 – Monitoring 
Networks.  
 
Based on available data, the following information is presented in subsequent subsections for 
both aquifers in the Subbasin. 
 

• Groundwater elevation contour maps for the seasonal high and low periods for 1997 
and 2017 

• A map depicting the change in groundwater elevation between 1997 and 2017 
• Hydrographs for wells with publicly available data 
• Assessments of horizontal and vertical groundwater gradients 

 
5.1.1 ALLUVIAL AQUIFER 

Groundwater elevation data for the Alluvial Aquifer are limited.  The locations of the 
Alluvial Aquifer monitor wells with available groundwater elevation data are shown on 
Figure 5-1. 
 

DRAFT



 

5-3 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

 
Figure 5-1.  Location of Wells used for the Groundwater Elevation Assessments

DRAFT



 

5-4 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

5.1.1.1 ALLUVIAL AQUIFER GROUNDWATER ELEVATION CONTOURS AND HORIZONTAL 
GROUNDWATER GRADIENTS 

Groundwater elevation data for the Alluvial Aquifer are too limited to prepare representative 
contour maps for the seasonal high and seasonal low groundwater elevations, or to prepare 
maps for historical groundwater elevations.  Figure 5-2 shows current groundwater elevation 
contours for the Alluvial Aquifer.  The contours were developed using 2017 data when 
available and the most recent data prior to 2017.  Contours are only depicted on the map in 
areas near the wells that are shown on Figure 5-1.  
 
Groundwater elevations range from approximately 1,400 feet above mean sea level (ft msl) in 
the southeastern portion of the Subbasin to approximately 600 ft msl near San Miguel.  
Groundwater flow in the Alluvial Aquifer generally follows the alignment of the creeks and 
rivers.  Overall, groundwater in the Alluvial Aquifer flows from southeast to northwest 
across the Subbasin.  Groundwater elevation data in the Alluvial Aquifer are too sparse to 
develop meaningful estimates of local horizontal groundwater gradients.  On a basin-wide 
scale, the average horizontal hydraulic gradient in the alluvium is about 0.004 from the 
southeastern portion of the Subbasin to San Miguel.   
 

5.1.1.1 ALLUVIAL AQUIFER HYDROGRAPHS 

Groundwater level data for all of the Alluvial Aquifer wells shown on Figure 5-1 were 
collected under confidentiality agreements.  Therefore, hydrographs for the Alluvial Aquifer 
are not included in this GSP.  The lack of publicly available groundwater level data for the 
Alluvial Aquifer is a significant data gap.   
 

DRAFT



 

5-5 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

 
Figure 5-2.  Groundwater Elevation Contours for the Alluvial Aquifer

DRAFT



 

5-6 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

 

5.1.2 PASO ROBLES FORMATION AQUIFER 

The locations of the Paso Robles Formation Aquifer monitor wells used to assess the 
hydrogeologic conditions of the Paso Robles Formation Aquifer are shown on Figure 5-1.  
Groundwater occurs in the Paso Robles Formation Aquifer under unconfined, semi-confined, 
and confined conditions.    
   

5.1.2.1 PASO ROBLES AQUIFER GROUNDWATER ELEVATION CONTOURS AND  
               HORIZONTAL GROUNDWATER GRADIENTS 

Groundwater elevation data for 1997 and 2017 for the Paso Robles Formation Aquifer were 
contoured to assess current spatial variations, groundwater flow directions, and horizontal 
groundwater gradients.  Contour maps were prepared for the seasonal high groundwater 
levels, which is typically in the spring, and the seasonal low groundwater levels, which is 
typically in the fall.  In general, the spring groundwater data are for April and the fall 
groundwater data are for October.  Data from public and private wells were used for 
contouring; information identifying the owner or detailed location of private wells is not 
shown on the maps.  The contours are based on groundwater elevations measured at the well 
locations shown on Figure 5-1.  Contour maps were generated using a computer-based 
contouring program and checked for representativeness by a qualified hydrogeologist.  
Groundwater elevation data deemed unrepresentative of static conditions or obviously 
erroneous were not used for contouring.  Similar to groundwater elevation contour maps 
prepared for previous studies, close inspection of the maps indicates localized areas where 
interpolated groundwater elevations are above land surface.  This typically occurs near 
streams and incised drainages where land surface tends to be locally lower than surrounding 
areas.  While it is hydrologically possible that groundwater elevations in the Paso Robles 
Formation Aquifer are above land surface in some local areas, our assessment is that this is 
more likely an artifact of the computer contouring of sparse groundwater elevation data.   
 
Figure 5-3 and Figure 5-4 show contours of historical groundwater elevations in the 
Paso Robles Formation Aquifer for spring 1997 and fall 1997, respectively.  Overall, ground-
water conditions in the Subbasin in the spring and fall of 1997 are similar.  Close inspection 
of the contour maps indicates that groundwater elevations are generally lower in the fall than 
spring.  Groundwater elevations ranged from about 1,300 ft msl in the southeast portion of 
the Subbasin to about 550 ft msl near the City of Paso Robles and the town of San Miguel 
(Figure 5-3 and Figure 5-4).  Groundwater flow is generally to the northwest and west over 
most of the Subbasin, except in the area north of the City of Paso Robles where groundwater 
flow is to the northeast.  In general, groundwater flow in the western portion of the Subbasin 
tends to converge toward areas of low groundwater elevations.  These areas of low ground-

DRAFT



 

5-7 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

water elevation are caused by pumping in the area between the City of Paso Robles, and the 
communities of San Miguel and Whitley Gardens.   
 
Horizontal groundwater gradients range from approximately 0.003 foot/foot in the southeast 
portion of the Subbasin to approximately 0.01 foot/foot in the areas both southeast of the 
City of Paso Robles and northwest of Whitley Gardens.  The steepest horizontal groundwater 
gradients in the Subbasin are on the margins of the pumping depression in the vicinity of the 
city of Paso Robles and community of San Miguel.   

DRAFT



 

5-8 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

 
Figure 5-3.  Spring 1997 Paso Robles Formation Aquifer Groundwater Elevation Contours 

DRAFT



 

5-9 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

 
Figure 5-4.  Fall 1997 Paso Robles Formation Aquifer Groundwater Elevation Contours 

DRAFT



 

5-10 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

Figure 5-5 and Figure 5-6 show contours of current groundwater elevations in the 
Paso Robles Formation Aquifer for spring 2017 and fall 2017, respectively.  Overall, 
groundwater conditions in the Subbasin in the spring and fall of 2017 were similar.  Close 
inspection of the contour maps indicates that groundwater elevations are generally lower in 
the fall than spring.  Groundwater elevations in 2017 are also lower than groundwater 
elevations in 1997.  Groundwater elevations in 2017 ranged from about 1,250 ft msl in the 
southeast portion of the Subbasin to about 500 ft msl east of the City of Paso Robles 
(Figure 5-5 and Figure 5-6).  Groundwater flow is generally to the northwest and west over 
most of the Subbasin, except in the area north of the City of Paso Robles where groundwater 
flow is to the northeast.  In general, groundwater flow in the western portion of the Subbasin 
tends to converge toward areas of low groundwater elevations.  These areas of low 
groundwater elevation are caused by pumping in the area between the City of Paso Robles 
and the communities of San Miguel and Whitley Gardens.  Horizontal groundwater 
gradients range from approximately 0.002 foot/foot in the southeast portion of the Subbasin 
to approximately 0.02 foot/foot in the area southeast of the City of Paso Robles.  The steepest 
horizontal groundwater gradients in the Subbasin in 2017 are on the margins of the pumping 
depression east of the city of Paso Robles and southeast of the community of San Miguel. 
 
   
 

DRAFT



 

5-11 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

 
Figure 5-5.  Paso Robles Formation Aquifer Spring 2017 Groundwater Elevation Contours 

DRAFT



 

5-12 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

 
Figure 5-6.  Paso Robles Formation Aquifer Fall 2017 Groundwater Elevation Contours 

DRAFT



 

5-13 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

Figure 5-7 depicts the change in spring groundwater elevations in the Paso Robles Formation 
Aquifer between 1997 and 2017.  Figure 5-8 depicts the change in fall groundwater elevations 
in the Paso Robles Formation Aquifer between and 1997 and 2017.  Groundwater elevations 
are lower in 2017 than 1997 throughout most of the Subbasin.  In general, the pattern of 
groundwater level decline in the spring and fall are similar, with a more pronounced area of 
decline extending toward Shandon in the fall.  More than 80 feet of decline is observed in 
places during this period.  Areas of largest decline are east of the city of Paso Robles, near 
Creston, and in the southeastern portion of the basin.  Limited data suggest an area of higher 
groundwater elevations exists in the vicinity of the city of Paso Robles in 2017 compared 
to 1997.  The increase may be related to reductions in groundwater pumping in the area. 
 
The groundwater level contours and groundwater level change maps in this GSP are based 
on a reasonable and thorough analysis of the currently available data.  As discussed in 
Chapter 8, the monitoring network should be expanded to more completely assess Subbasin 
conditions and demonstrate compliance with the sustainability goal for the Subbasin. 
Expanding the monitoring network and acquiring more groundwater elevation data will 
allow the GSAs to refine and modify this GSP in the future based on a more complete 
understanding of Subbasin conditions. 

DRAFT



 

5-14 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

 
Figure 5-7.  Paso Robles Formation Aquifer Change in Groundwater Elevation – Spring 1997 to Spring 2017 

DRAFT



 

5-15 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

 
Figure 5-8.  Paso Robles Formation Aquifer Change in Groundwater Elevation – Fall 1997 to Fall 2017

DRAFT



 

5-16 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

5.1.2.2 PASO ROBLES FORMATION AQUIFER HYDROGRAPHS 

Appendix 5A includes hydrographs for wells in the Paso Robles Formation Aquifer that have 
publicly available data.  Only 18 of the monitor wells have groundwater elevation data that 
were not collected under confidentiality agreements.  The lack of publicly available ground-
water level data for the Paso Robles Formation Aquifer is a significant data gap. 
 
Figure 5-9 through Figure 5-11 show example hydrographs for wells located in the Estrella, 
Shandon, and Creston subareas of the Paso Robles Subbasin.  Wells with publicly available 
data do not exist in the San Juan subarea.  Long-term groundwater elevation declines are 
evident on all three hydrographs.  The magnitude of measured declines over the period of 
record is generally more than 50 feet at well 25S/12E-06L01, 26S/15E-20B02, and  
27S/13E-28F01.  
 
The hydrographs show periods of climatic variations grouped by the following designations: 
wet, dry, or average/alternating wet and dry.  Precipitation data were reviewed and analyzed 
to determine the occurrence and duration of wet and dry periods for the Paso Robles 
Subbasin.  Precipitation from the Paso Robles weather station (NOAA station 46730) was 
used for this analysis because it is representative of conditions in the Subbasin and has the 
longest period of record of any station in the Subbasin. Figure 5-12 shows total annual 
precipitation by water year recorded at the Paso Robles station.  Mean annual precipitation 
over the period 1925 to 2017 was 14.6 inches. 
 
Wet and dry periods were determined based on a calculation and review of the Standardized 
Precipitation Index (SPI), which quantifies deviations from normal precipitation.  The SPI 
was calculated at 1-, 2-, and 5-year time scales using the SPI Generator Tool developed by the 
National Drought Mitigation Center (NDMC, 2018).  The 5-year, or 60-month SPI was 
selected as representative of multi-year meteorological fluctuations in the basin based on 
review of the data and computed SPI time series.  For a given water year, the 60-month SPI 
quantifies the wetness or dryness of the preceding 60 months relative to the overall period of 
record.  The annual time-series of the 60-month SPI was reviewed and generalized to 
determine wet and dry periods from 1930 to 2017 (Figure 5-12).  A third category, “Average/ 
alternating”, is included for years during which the preceding 60-month period does not 
show a strong and persistent deviation from normal precipitation. 
 
 
 

DRAFT



 

5-17 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

 
Figure 5-9.  Groundwater Elevation at Paso Robles Formation Aquifer Well 25S/12E-26L01 

DRAFT



 

5-18 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

 
Figure 5-10.  Groundwater Elevation at Paso Robles Formation Aquifer Well 26S/15E-20B02 

DRAFT



 

5-19 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

 
Figure 5-11.  Groundwater Elevation at Paso Robles Formation Aquifer Well 27S/13E-28F01 

DRAFT



 

5-20 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

 
Figure 5-12.  Climatic Periods in the Paso Robles Subbasin

DRAFT



 

5-21 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

5.1.3 VERTICAL GROUNDWATER GRADIENTS 

Limited data exist to assess vertical groundwater gradients.  Previous hydrologic studies of 
the Subbasin indicate that groundwater elevations are generally higher in the Alluvial 
Aquifer than the underlying Paso Robles Formation Aquifer, resulting in groundwater flow 
from the Alluvial Aquifer to the underlying Paso Robles Formation aquifer (Fugro, 2005).  
The Paso Robles Groundwater Basin Study, Phase II (Fugro, 2005) stated that there is an assumed 
upward vertical groundwater gradient near the northern portion of the Subbasin, although 
data were not provided to verify this assumption.   
 
Vertical groundwater gradients can be estimated from nested or clustered wells.  Wells 
25S/12E-16K04, K05, and K06 are nested and provide groundwater elevation data from 
different depths in the Paso Robles Formation Aquifer near San Miguel.  These wells are 
adjacent to a water supply well and therefore the vertical groundwater gradients may reflect 
local pumping conditions rather than broad, regional conditions.  Hydrographs for these 
wells are shown on Figure 5-13.  On this figure, groundwater levels in the shallowest well are 
shown with a green line, groundwater levels in the middle depth well are shown with a 
yellow line, and groundwater levels in the deepest well are shown with a red line.  Prior to 
2002, groundwater levels in the deepest well (red line) were generally higher than the 
groundwater levels in the middle and shallow wells, indicating an upward vertical 
groundwater gradient.  A consistent vertical groundwater gradient is not apparent between 
the shallow and middle wells prior to 2002; groundwater elevations in the shallow and 
middle depth wells fluctuate around each other.  After 2012, groundwater elevations in the 
deepest well were usually similar to or below the groundwater elevations in the shallow and 
middle depth wells; indicating a downward vertical groundwater gradient.   
 

DRAFT



 

5-22 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

 
Figure 5-13.  Vertical Groundwater Gradients near San Miguel 

 DRAFT



 

5-23 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

5.2 CHANGE IN GROUNDWATER STORAGE 

This section summarizes changes in groundwater storage in the Subbasin within the GSP 
area.  Change in groundwater storage was estimated for water years 1981 through 2016 using 
the updated Paso Robles Subbasin groundwater model. 
 

5.2.1 ALLUVIAL AQUIFER 

Figure 5-14 shows the cumulative change in groundwater storage for water years 1981 
through 2016 for the Alluvial Aquifer.  The period from 1981 through 2011 is considered 
representative on long-term hydrologic conditions prior to the drought period of 2012 
through 2016.  The graph also shows the estimated annual groundwater pumping derived 
from the updated groundwater model and wet, dry, and average/alternating climatic periods 
based on the analysis presented in Section 5.1.2.2.   
 
Over the period 1981 through 2011, the model indicates no net change in storage occurred in 
the Alluvial Aquifer.  This projection is consistent with the observed stable groundwater 
elevations in hydrographs for wells screened in the Alluvial Aquifer.  During the drought 
period 2012 through 2016, the model suggests a loss of groundwater in storage in the Alluvial 
Aquifer of about 50,000 acre-feet (AF).   
 
As indicated on, a decrease in groundwater storage generally occurs during dry periods and 
an increase in groundwater storage generally occurs during wet periods.    During the period 
1981 through 2011, estimated groundwater pumping from the Alluvial Aquifer decreased 
from about 6,000 acre-feet per year (AFY) to about 2,000 AFY as indicated by the black bars 
on Figure 5-14.  This suggests that the loss in groundwater storage is not due to increased 
pumping, but is more likely a result of lack of recharge during low precipitation years.  A 
secondary cause for the storage loss might be increased downward flow from the Alluvial 
Aquifer into the Paso Robles Aquifer during this period, although this is difficult to 
definitively assess from the data. 
 
  
 DRAFT



 

5-24 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

 
Figure 5-14.  Estimated Cumulative Change in Groundwater Storage in Alluvial Aquifer 

DRAFT



 

5-25 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

5.2.2 PASO ROBLES FORMATION AQUIFER 

Figure 5-15 shows precipitation data and the cumulative change in groundwater storage for 
water years 1981 through 2016 for the Paso Robles Formation Aquifer.  The graph also shows 
the annual groundwater pumping and water year type.  The climatic variation shown on 
Figure 5-15 is the same climatic variation developed on Figure 5-12.  Over the period 1981 
through 2011, approximately 170,000 AF were removed from storage in the Paso Robles 
Formation Aquifer.  Over the period 1981 through 2016, approximately 440,000 AF were 
removed from storage in the Paso Robles Formation Aquifer.  Depletion of groundwater 
storage generally occurs during dry periods and increases in groundwater storage generally 
occur during wet periods, as indicated on Figure 5-15.  Groundwater pumping decreased 
during the period from 1981 to 1999 and generally increased from 1999 to 2016.  The loss in 
groundwater storage appears to be from a combination of increased pumping since 1999 and 
a number of dry years with limited recharge. 
 

DRAFT



 

5-26 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

 
Figure 5-15.  Estimated Cumulative Change in Groundwater Storage in Paso Robles Formation Aquifer 

DRAFT



 

5-27 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

5.3 SEAWATER INTRUSION 

Seawater intrusion is not an applicable sustainability indicator for the Subbasin. The 
Subbasin is not adjacent to the Pacific Ocean, a bay, or inlet.   
 

5.4 SUBSIDENCE 

Land subsidence is the lowering of the land surface.  While several human-induced and 
natural causes of subsidence exist, the only process applicable to the GSP is subsidence due 
to lowered groundwater elevations caused by groundwater pumping. 
      
Direct measurements of subsidence have not been made in the Subbasin using extensometers 
or repeat benchmark calibration; however, interferometric synthetic aperture radar (InSAR) 
has been used in the area to remotely map subsidence.  This technology uses radar images 
taken from satellites that are used to create maps of changes in land surface elevation.  
The studies done in the area show that a localized area three miles northeast of the City of 
Paso Robles had a downward displacement of 0.6 to 2.1 inches between Spring 1997 and Fall 
1997 (Valentine, D. W. et al., 2001).   
 

5.5 INTERCONNECTED SURFACE WATER 

Limited and ephemeral surface water flows in the Subbasin over the last 40 years make it 
difficult to study the interconnectivity of surface water and groundwater and to quantify the 
degree to which surface water depletion has occurred.  The spatial extent of interconnected 
surface water was evaluated based on results from the basin-wide groundwater flow model 
of the Paso Robles Subbasin.  In accordance with the SGMA emergency regulations §351 (o), 
“Interconnected surface water refers to surface water that is hydraulically connected at any 
point by a continuous saturated zone to the underlying aquifer and the overlying surface 
water is not completely depleted”.  We estimated which surface water bodies are inter-
connected by comparing simulated groundwater elevations in the Alluvial Aquifer and 
Paso Robles Formation Aquifer with the elevation of the stream or river bottom.  If model-
simulated groundwater elevations in any aquifer were above the bottom of the stream or 
river for at least half of the time between 2010 and 2016, then the surface water was 
considered interconnected with the groundwater.  This concept is illustrated in Figure 5-16.  
In this figure, both diagrams A and B represent interconnected surface waters.  Diagram C 
shows non-interconnected surface water.       
 
Figure 5-17 shows the extent of interconnected surface water for Water Years 2010 through 
2016 based on this model evaluation. 
 

DRAFT



 

5-28 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

 
Figure 5-16.  Interconnected and Non-Interconnected Surface Waters DRAFT



 

5-29 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

 
Figure 5-17.  Locations of Interconnected Surface Waters

DRAFT



 

5-30 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

5.5.1 DEPLETION OF INTERCONNECTED SURFACE WATER 

Groundwater withdrawals are balanced by a combination of reductions in groundwater 
storage and changes in the rate of exchange across hydrologic boundaries.  In the case of 
surface water depletion, this rate change could be due to reductions in rates of groundwater 
discharge to surface water, and increased rates of surface water percolation to groundwater.  
These two changes together comprise the amount of surface water depletion.  
 
Depletion of interconnected surface water was estimated by evaluating the change in the 
modeled stream leakage with and without pumping.  A model simulation was run without 
groundwater pumping and was compared to the existing model with groundwater pumping.  
The difference in stream depletion between the two models is the depletion caused by the 
groundwater pumping.  The stream depletion differences are only estimated for the 
interconnected segments identified in Figure 5-17.  The methodology for quantifying stream 
depletion is described in detail by Barlow and Leake (2012). 
 
Figure 5-18 shows the estimated annual depletion of the interconnected surface water along 
the stream segments shown in Figure 5-17 due to groundwater pumping.  During the period 
Water Years 1991 to 2011, mean annual surface water depletion was about 7,600 AFY.  
During the period of time representative of current conditions (Water Year 2012 through 
2016), mean annual surface water depletion was about 8,500 AFY. 

DRAFT



 

5-31 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

  
Figure 5-18.  Estimated Annual Depletion of Interconnected Surface WaterDRAFT



 

5-32 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

5.6 GROUNDWATER QUALITY DISTRIBUTION AND TRENDS 

Groundwater quality samples have been collected and analyzed throughout the Subbasin for 
various studies and programs.  Water quality samples have been collected on a regular basis 
for compliance with regulatory programs.  Additionally, a broad survey of groundwater 
quality sampling was conducted for the Paso Robles Groundwater Basin Study, Phase I (Fugro, 
2002), and most recently by the USGS in 2018.  Historical groundwater quality data were 
compiled for use in the Salt and Nutrient Management Plan (SNMP) (RMC, 2015).   
 

5.6.1 GROUNDWATER QUALITY SUITABILITY FOR DRINKING WATER 

Groundwater in the basin is generally suitable for drinking water purposes. The Paso Robles 
Groundwater Basin Study, Phase I (Fugro 2002) reviewed water quality data from public 
supply wells to identify exceedances of drinking water standards.  The drinking water 
standards Maximum Contaminant Levels (MCLs) and Secondary MCLs (SMCLs) are 
established by Federal and State agencies.  MCLs are legally enforceable standards, while 
SMCLs are guidelines established for nonhazardous aesthetic considerations such as taste, 
odor, and color.  The most common water quality standard exceedance in the Subbasin was 
exceedance of the SMCL for total dissolved solids, which exceeded the standard in 
14 samples from the 74 samples.  Nitrate also exceeded the MCL in four samples.  One 
exceedance of mercury was found in the San Miguel area in a 1990 sample.  
 

5.6.2 GROUNDWATER QUALITY SUITABILITY FOR AGRICULTURAL IRRIGATION 

Groundwater in the basin is generally suitable for agricultural purposes. Fugro (2002) 
evaluated the agricultural suitability of groundwater using three metrics:  
 

1. Salinity as indicated by electrical conductivity;  
2. Soil structure as indicated by sodium absorption ratio and electrical conductivity; and 
3. Presence of toxic salts as indicated by concentrations of sodium, chloride, and boron.  

 
Of the 74 samples evaluated, 37 had no restrictions on irrigation use (Fugro, 2002).  This does 
not imply that half of the groundwater in the basin is unsuitable for irrigation; only that half 
of the samples had some constituent that may restrict unlimited irrigation use.  Most cases of 
slight to moderate restriction on irrigation use were due to sodium or chloride toxicity.  
Severe restrictions for 13 samples were generally the result of high sodium, chloride, or boron 
toxicity. 
 

DRAFT



 

5-33 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

5.6.3 DISTRIBUTION AND CONCENTRATIONS OF POINT SOURCES  
           OF GROUNDWATER CONSTITUENTS 

Potential point sources of groundwater quality degradation were identified using the 
State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) Geotracker website.  Waste Discharge permits 
were also reviewed from on-line regional SWRCB websites.  Table 5-1 summarizes 
information from these websites.  Figure 5-19 shows the location of potential groundwater 
contaminant point sources.  Based on available information there are no mapped ground-
water contamination plumes at these sites, although investigations are ongoing. 
 

Table 5-1.  Potential Point Sources of Groundwater Contamination 

SITE NAME SITE TYPE 
CONSTITUENTS OF 
CONCERN (COCs) STATUS 

Former Chevron 
9-0750 

LUST Cleanup 
Site 

petroleum 
hydrocarbons 

Remedial action plan 
submitted Q2 2018 

Kirkpatrick Property 
(Unocal Portion) 

Cleanup 
Program Site 

crude oil Impacted soil; health risk 
assessment prepared in 2016 

Lucy Brown Road Pipeline 
Site (Former 
ConocoPhillips Site #3469) 

Cleanup 
Program Site 

crude oil, diesel, 
gasoline 

Initial groundwater 
monitoring data no 
significant impacts to 
groundwater. 

Estrella Airfield (Paso 
Robles Municipal Airport) 

Military 
Cleanup Site 

Unknown Unknown 

Camp Roberts  
Solid Waste Site 

Land Disposal 
Site 

metals, cyanide, sulfide, 
herbicides, volatile 
organic compounds 
(VOCs), pesticides, 
PCBs, phthalate esters, 
phenols, semi-VOCs 

Total dissolved solids (TDS), 
nitrate and manganese 
detected in wells at 
concentrations above 
regulatory standards. 

Camp Roberts South and 
Closed Landfill 

Land Disposal 
Site 

VOCs, chloride, sulfate, 
nitrate, sodium, 
manganese, TDS, total 
organic carbon 

Carbon tetrachloride 
detected at concentrations 
exceeding MCL. 

Paso Robles 
Solid Waste Site 

Land Disposal 
Site 

chloride, total alkalinity, 
manganese, nitrate, 
sodium, sulfate, 
temperature, TDS, 
VOCs, Pesticides, PCBs, 
organophosphorus 
compounds, herbicides, 
semi-VOCs 

COCs not detected in 
groundwater; sulfate and 
barium locally elevated; no 
remedial activities. 

 

DRAFT



 

5-34 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

  
Figure 5-19.  Location of Potential Point Sources of Groundwater Contaminants 

DRAFT



 

5-35 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

5.6.4 DISTRIBUTION AND CONCENTRATIONS OF DIFFUSE OR  
            NATURAL GROUNDWATER CONSTITUENTS 

Fugro (2002) identified a number of constituents of concern that are broadly distributed 
throughout the Subbasin. The SNMP (RMC, 2015) provides additional data on the 
distribution of certain constituents.  This GSP focuses only on constituents that might be 
impacted by groundwater management activities.  The constituents discussed below are 
chosen because: 

1. The constituent has either a drinking water standard or a known effect on crops.  
2. Concentrations have been observed above either the drinking water standard or the 

level that affects crops.  

5.6.4.1 TOTAL DISSOLVED SOLIDS  

Total Dissolved Solids (TDS) is a constituent of concern in groundwater because it has been 
detected at concentrations greater than its SMCL of 500 milligrams per liter (mg/L).  Table 5-2 
shows the range and average TDS concentrations by subarea as reported in the SNMP 
(RMC, 2015).  This table shows the average TDS concentrations are greater than the SMCL of 
500 mg/L in parts of the Subbasin.  This table includes data for portions of the Bradley, North 
Gabilan, and South Gabilan subareas that are outside the GSP area. 

Table 5-2.  TDS Concentration Ranges and Averages 

Hydrogeologic 
Subarea 

TDS 
Concentration 
Range (mg/L) 

Average TDS 
Concentration 

(mg/L) 
Estrella  350 – 1,560    552   
Shandon  270 – 3,160    563   
Creston  190 – 1,620    388   
San Juan  160 – 2,170    425   
Bradley  400 – 1,280    751   
North Gabilan  370 – 1,320    856   
South Gabilan  370 – 1,320    451   

Source:  RMC, 2015 

The distribution and trends of TDS in the Subbasin are shown on Figure 5-20.  This figure is 
from the SNMP (RMC, 2015) and includes portions of the Subbasin north of the 
Monterey County line which are outside the GSP area.  The study area for the SNMP also did 
not extend as far southeast as the GSP area.  TDS distribution shown on this figure is not 
differentiated by aquifer or well depth.  Sustainability projects and management actions 
implemented as part of this GSP are not anticipated to directly cause TDS concentrations in 
groundwater in a well that would otherwise remain below the SMCL to increase above the 
SMCL. 

DRAFT



 

5-36 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

 
Figure 5-20.  TDS Regional Distribution and Trends 

Source: RMC, 2015 

 DRAFT



 

5-37 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

5.6.4.1 CHLORIDE  

Chloride is a constituent of concern in groundwater because it has been detected at 
concentrations greater than its SMCL of 250 mg/L.  Elevated chloride concentrations in 
groundwater can damage crops and affect plant growth.  The Paso Robles Groundwater Basin 
Study, Phase I (Fugro 2002) reported that slight to moderate restrictions on irrigating trees and 
vines may occur when chloride concentrations exceed 100 mg/L.  Severe restrictions on 
irrigating trees and vines may occur when chloride concentrations exceed 350 mg/L. 
 
Table 5-3, which was compiled based on various tables and related information in the SNMP 
(RMC, 2015), shows the range and average chloride concentrations by subarea.  This table 
indicates that average chloride concentrations are less than the SMCL of 250 mg/L 
throughout Subbasin.  This table includes data for areas of the Bradley, North Gabilan, and 
South Gabilan subareas that are outside the GSP area. 
 

Table 5-3.  Chloride Concentration Ranges and Averages 

Hydrogeologic 
Subarea 

Chloride 
Concentration 
Range (mg/L) 

Average 
Chloride 

Concentration 
(mg/L) 

Estrella  32 - 572    94   
Shandon  31 - 550    80   
Creston  25 - 508    69   
San Juan  13 - 699    64   
Bradley  40 - 400    84   
North Gabilan  35 - 209    113   
South Gabilan  35 - 209    37   

Source:  RMC, 2015 
 
The distribution and trends of chloride in the Subbasin are shown on Figure 5-21.  This figure 
is from the SNMP (RMC, 2015) and includes portions of the Subbasin north of the Monterey 
County line which are outside the GSP area.  Chloride distribution shown on this figure is 
not differentiated by aquifer or well depth.  Sustainability projects and management actions 
implemented as part of this GSP are not anticipated to directly cause chloride concentrations 
in groundwater in a well that would otherwise remain below the SMCL to increase above the 
SMCL.  

DRAFT



 

5-38 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

 
Figure 5-21.  Chloride Regional Distribution and Trends 

Source:  RMC, 2015 

 DRAFT



 

5-39 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

5.6.4.2 SULFATE 

Sulfate is a constituent of concern in groundwater because it has been observed at 
concentrations above its SMCL of 250 mg/L.  Table 5-4 shows the range and average sulfate 
concentrations by subarea as reported in the SNMP (RMC, 2015).  This table shows the 
average sulfate concentrations are greater than the SMCL of 250 mg/L in many areas of the 
Subbasin.  This table includes data for areas of the Bradley, North Gabilan, and South 
Gabilan subareas that are outside the GSP area. 
 

Table 5-4.  Sulfate Concentration Ranges and Averages 

Hydrogeologic 
Subarea 

Sulfate 
Concentration 
Range (mg/L) 

Average 
Sulfate 

Concentration 
(mg/L) 

Estrella  11 - 375    129   
Shandon  14 – 2,010    360   
Creston  7 - 353    67   
San Juan  24 - 722    248   
Bradley  30 - 704    296   
North Gabilan  9 - 648    194   
South Gabilan  9 - 648    194   

Source:  RMC, 2015 
 
Maps of sulfate distribution in the Subbasin were not found in previous studies.  
Sustainability projects and management actions implemented as part of this GSP are not 
anticipated to directly cause sulfate concentrations in groundwater in a well that would 
otherwise remain below the SMCL to increase above the SMCL.   
 

5.6.4.3 NITRATE 

Nitrate is a constituent of concern in groundwater because concentrations have been detected 
greater than its MCL of 10 mg/L (measured as nitrogen).  Nitrate concentrations in excess of 
the MCLs can result in health impacts.   
 
Table 5-5 shows the range and average nitrate concentrations by subarea as reported in the 
SNMP (RMC, 2015).  This table shows the average nitrate concentrations are less than the 
MCL of 10 mg/L throughout Subbasin.  The range of measured nitrate concentrations 
however exceeds the MCL of 10 mg/L in every subarea.  This table includes data for areas of 
the Bradley, North Gabilan, and South Gabilan subareas that are outside the GSP area. 
 

DRAFT



 

5-40 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

Table 5-5.  Nitrate Concentration Ranges and Averages 

Hydrogeologic 
Subarea 

Nitrate 
Concentration 
Range (mg/L) 

Average 
Nitrate 

Concentration 
(mg/L) 

Estrella  0 – 16.2    2.5   
Shandon  1.2 – 12.1    4.6   
Creston  0.8 – 9.2    3.2 
San Juan  0.1 – 5.8    2.8   
Bradley  0.0 – 5.8    2.7   
North Gabilan  5.0 – 9.8    8.4   
South Gabilan  15.8    6.3   

Source:  RMC, 2015; data are from Table 3-12; the range of nitrate concentration in the South Gabilan 
subarea is uncertain 
 

 
The distribution and trends of nitrate in the Subbasin are shown on Figure 5-22.  This figure 
is from the SNMP (RMC, 2015) and includes portions of the Subbasin north of the Monterey 
County line which are outside the GSP area.  This nitrate distribution shown on this figure is 
not differentiated by aquifer or well depth.  Sustainability projects and management actions 
implemented as part of this GSP are not anticipated to directly cause nitrate concentrations in 
groundwater in a well that would otherwise remain below the SMCL to increase above the 
SMCL.    

DRAFT



 

5-41 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

 
Figure 5-22.  Nitrate Regional Distribution and Trends 

Source:  RMC, 2015. Figure 3-10 DRAFT



 

5-42 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

5.6.4.4 BORON 

Boron is an unregulated constituent and therefore does not have a regulatory standard.  
However, boron is a constituent of concern because elevated boron concentrations in water 
can damage crops and affect plant growth.  The Paso Robles Groundwater Basin Study, Phase I 
(Fugro 2002) reported that severe restrictions on irrigating trees and vines may occur when 
boron concentrations exceed 0.5 mg/L.   
 
Table 5-6 shows the range and average boron concentrations by subarea as reported in the 
SNMP (RMC, 2015).  Average boron concentration exceeds the severe irrigation restriction 
level of 0.5 mg/L in the Estrella, Shandon, and San Juan subareas.  The table includes data for 
areas of the Bradley, North Gabilan, and South Gabilan subareas that are outside the GSP 
area. 
 

Table 5-6.  Boron Concentration Ranges and Averages 

Hydrogeologic 
Subarea 

Boron 
Concentration 
Range (mg/L) 

Average 
Boron 

Concentration 
(mg/L) 

Estrella  0.13 – 5.66    1.8   
Shandon  0.08 – 2.97    0.81   
Creston  0.06 – 0.31    0.14   
San Juan  0.08 – 2.29    0.74   
Bradley  0.12 – 0.18    0.15   
North Gabilan  0.11 – 0.44    0.24   
South Gabilan  0.11 – 0.44    0.24   

Source:  RMC, 2015 
 
Maps of boron distribution in the Subbasin were not found in previous studies.  
Sustainability projects and management actions implemented as part of this GSP are not 
anticipated to directly cause boron concentrations in groundwater in a well that would 
otherwise remain below the SMCL to increase above the SMCL.   
 

5.6.4.5 GROSS ALPHA RADIATION 

Gross alpha radiation is a constituent of concern because it has been detected at 
concentrations greater than its MCL of 15 picocuries per liter (pCi/L).  Fugro (2002) reports 
that gross alpha radioactivity is present in most areas of the basin.  Gross alpha particle count 
activity in groundwater exceeded the MCL for drinking water in the Estrella and Bradley 
areas.  Gross alpha data included in Fugro’s 2002 report are summarized in Table 5-7. 

DRAFT



 

5-43 
 
DRAFT Paso Robles Subbasin  
Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
October 10, 2018 

 
Table 5-7.  Gross Alpha Concentration Ranges and Averages 

Hydrogeologic 
Subarea 

Gross Alpha 
Maximum 

Concentration 
(pCi/L) 

Gross Alpha 
Average 

Concentration 
(pCi/L) 

Estrella 31 20 
Shandon 3 3 
Bradley 23 2 

Source:  Fugro, 2002 
 
No maps exist of the gross alpha distribution in the Subbasin.  Sustainability projects and 
management actions implemented as part of this GSP are not anticipated to directly cause 
gross alpha radiation concentrations in groundwater in a well that would otherwise remain 
below the SMCL to increase above the SMCL.   

5.6.5 GROUNDWATER QUALITY SURROUNDING THE PASO ROBLES SUBBASIN 

Poor quality groundwater has been documented in wells that screen sediments and rocks 
below the Paso Formation as well as sediments and rocks surrounding the Subbasin.  Based 
on limited observations, there is a concern that this poor quality groundwater may be drawn 
into wells in the Subbasin and degrade the groundwater quality if groundwater levels are 
allowed to fall too low.  Groundwater levels must be maintained at elevations that prevent 
migration of poor quality groundwater from beneath or around the Subbasin. 
 

 

DRAFT



X:\Scott\Projects\WTP Actuators Replacement\BOD MEMO_WTP Actuators Nov 2018.docx 

HERITAGE RANCH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Scott Duffield, General Manager 
  Jason Molinari, Operations Manager 
 
DATE: November 15, 2018 
 
SUBJECT: Request to consider approval of replacing the Water Treatment Plant 

influent and effluent actuators at an estimated cost of $48,990 and authorize 
a corresponding budget adjustment from reserves. 

 
 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 
 

1. Consider approval of replacing the Water Treatment Plant influent and effluent 
actuators at an estimated cost of $48,990; and 
  

2. Authorize a corresponding budget adjustment from reserves.   
 
Background 
 
Your Board approved a FY 2018/19 Budget that includes an operating budget and a 
capital budget.   
 
Your Board approved a Five Year Capital Improvement Program (CIP) in March of 2017.   
 
Your Board approved updated water and sewer rates in July of 2017 that incorporates 
the CIP.  In order keep impacts of the new rates as minimal as possible, your Board chose 
to defer all capital projects for two fiscal years, or until FY 2019/20.  
 
Discussion 
 
Understanding that the Board approved the updated user fees with the two year delay in 
capital projects, staff has concentrated on other matters such as permitting and regulatory 
compliance.  There are no significant capital projects budgeted this fiscal year.  Your 
Board received an update on the CIP at your October meeting and understands that it 
may become necessary to implement projects prior to the dates shown in the CIP, or 
develop new projects based on need.  Replacement of the Water Treatment Plant 
actuators (Project) is one of the projects that needs to be implemented.   



2 
 

The purpose of the Project  is to replace the influent and effluent actuators on each of the 
four filter units. The existing actuators date back to 1995 when the water treatment plant 
was built. The actuators are an integral part of the treatment process controlling flow and 
level for each filter. If one actuator fails, the filter has to be taken out of operation until the 
actuator is repaired. To run efficiently, the water treatment plant requires all filters to be 
operable.  
 
The Project is needed because, the filter actuators have been failing at a steady rate over 
the last several years.The manufacturer stopped supporting the filter influent actuators in 
2003 and the filter effluent actuators in 2007. With no replacement parts available, the 
District has no choice except to replace the entire actuator. The project will also allow the 
District to purchase a more reliable actuator which is better suited for its’ intended 
purpose. 
 
The Project will be implemented by staff purchasing and installing six actuators.  
Programming changes, by an outside source, will most likely be required to integrate the 
new actuators into the current treatment process. Equipment, material and labor costs 
are listed in the attached spreadsheet.  
 
Fiscal Implications 
 
The CIP and staff propose to fund this project by cash reserves.  If approved by your 
Board $48,990 will be transferred from reserves to the FY 2018/19 capital budget. 
 
Results 
 
Approval of the recommended action will initiate implementation of the Project and  
provide for continued safe and reliable water service to our customers. 
 
 
Attachments: WTP Actuator Replacement Cost Estimate   
 



Item Cost
Units/

Hrs Amount
Actuator 5,500.00$     6 33,000.00$   

Actuator Parts 1,000.00$     2 2,000.00$     
Programming 150.00$       48 7,200.00$     

Misc. materials 400.00$       1 400.00$        

42,600.00$   
6,390.00$     

48,990.00$   

Staff Labor

Position
 Burdened 

Hourly Rate Hours Amount
Operator II 53.65$         20 1,073.00$     
Operator II 52.60$         20 1,052.00$     

Operations Manager 80.84$         48 3,880.32$     

6,005.32$     

54,995.32$   

Staff Labor Cost

Total Cost of Repair Project

WTP Actuator Replacement Cost

Equipment and Programming Total

Total Transferred from Reserves

Equipment and Programming 

Six replacement actuators (includes tax & shipping)
Description

Two replacement actuator motors
Programming to tune actuators for filter flow and level

Description
Remove existing actuator, install and wire new actuator
Remove existing actuator, install and wire new actuator

Work with programmer on changes/troubleshooting

Conduit, wiring and fittings

15% Contingency



X:\Scott\Administration\MEMO BOD_Surplus property 10292018.docx 

HERITAGE RANCH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Scott Duffield, General Manager 

 
DATE: November 15, 2018 
 
SUBJECT: Submittal for approval Resolution 18-12 declaring certain items to be 

surplus property and authorizing disposal. 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors consider approval of Resolution 18-12 
declaring certain items to be surplus property and authorizing disposal. 
 
Background  
 
It is the practice of the Board to declare surplus property on an as needed basis.   
 
Discussion 
 
Surplus property that has been purchased with public funds, donated to the District, or 
acquired or owned by the District through other means, is the property of the District and 
does not belong to individuals, including but not limited to District employees, retirees, 
and members of the Board of Directors.  No individual may personally benefit from the 
disposition of surplus property or dispose of it in a manner which could result in or give 
rise to an actual or perceived conflict of interest. 
 
The District will dispose of the surplus property in a manner that is transparent, fiscally 
responsible, reduces harmful environmental impacts, promotes a reduce-reuse-recycle 
philosophy, and is in accordance with all applicable local, state, and federal regulations.  
 
The Manager may sell or dispose of surplus property by the following means: 
 

• Sale or donation of the items to another government agency or charity. 
• Sale of the items to the highest bidder at a public auction. 
• Sale of the items without public bidding to any eligible party paying a fair price. 
• Disposal of the items by any other lawful means if the manager determines that 

the item has no redeemable value. 
  



 2 

Fiscal Considerations 
 
Revenue, if any, generated from the disposition of surplus property will be recorded as 
miscellaneous revenue and will be reported to your Board. 
 
Results 
 
Approval of the recommended action will result in staff advertising surplus property for 
sale or disposing of surplus property by means deemed appropriate, leading to fiscally 
responsible and transparent management of the District. 
 
  
Attachments: Resolution 18-12 Declaring Certain Items to be Surplus Property and 

Authorizing Disposal  



X:\Scott\Administration\RESO_Surplus Property.docx 

HERITAGE RANCH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION NO. 18-12 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HERITAGE RANCH 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT DECLARING CERTAIN ITEMS TO BE 
SURPLUS PROPERTY AND AUTHORIZING DISPOSAL 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Heritage Ranch Community Services District (“District”) General 
Manager has determined that certain items owned by the District are surplus to the District’s needs 
(“Surplus Property”); and 
 

WHEREAS, this Surplus Property is identified in the attached Exhibit A; and 
 
WHEREAS, the General Manager recommends that the Surplus Property be disposed of 

in an appropriate manner to be determined by the General Manager. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the Board of Directors 
of the Heritage Ranch Community Services District that the aforementioned property is Surplus 
Property and the Board authorizes the General Manager to dispose of these items as delineated 
above. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Heritage 
Ranch Community Services District on the 15th day of November 2018, by the following roll call 
vote. 

 
    AYES: 
    NOES: 
    ABSTAIN: 
    ABSENT: 
 
     
 
 
APPROVED:_________________________ 
                            Martin Rowley, President  
                            Board of Directors 
                                                                                        ATTEST:_______________________ 
                                                                                                          Kristen Gelos, Secretary 
                                                                                                          Board of Directors 

 



Heritage Ranch Community Services District
Surplus Property - November 2018

Item No. Description
1 Folding machine
2 Typewriter
3 Binding machine
4 Desk w/righthand return
5 Desk w/lefthand returm
6 Hutch
7 File cabinet (double)
8 File cabinet (single)
9 Bookshelf (small)
10 Office chairs (3)
11 Chairs (2)
12 Miscellaneous cords/electronics
13 Miscellaneous file organizers
14 Miscellaneous framed pictures

Exhibit A

1 of 4



Heritage Ranch Community Services District 
Surplus Property – November 2018 
 

     
 
 

     
 
 

     

Exhibit A

2 of 4



Heritage Ranch Community Services District 
Surplus Property – November 2018 
 

      
 
 

      
 

Exhibit A

3 of 4



Heritage Ranch Community Services District 
Surplus Property – November 2018 
 

       
 
 

     

Exhibit A

4 of 4



 
 

HERITAGE RANCH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REGULAR MEETING 

Minutes of October 18, 2018 

 
1. 4:00 PM OPEN SESSION / CALL TO ORDER / FLAG SALUTE / ROLL CALL 

President Rowley called the meeting to order at 4:00 pm and led the flag salute. 
Secretary Gelos called the role.  All Directors were present. 
Staff present: General Manager Scott Duffield, Office Supervisor/Board Secretary Kristen Gelos, 
Operations Manager/AGM Jason Molinari. 
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT ON ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
Heritage Ranch Sam Poppin wanted to compliment the CSD on the landscaping improvements made 
in front of a lift station on Heritage and Loop Road.  Heritage Ranch resident Rob Stewart had some 
general questions, the Board responded. 
 

3. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
a. Request to adopt updated Heritage Ranch Community Services District Standard 

Specifications and Drawings:  Manager Duffield provided a brief summary of the item.  
The Board discussed item and asked that an amendment be made to remove dual 
connections and making 1” lateral mandatory with single service only. 
Director Barker made a motion to approve the District Standard Specifications and Drawings with 
amendments.  Director Burgess seconded the motion.  The motion passed by a unanimous voice 
vote: 

Ayes: Barker, Burgess, Capps, Cousineau, Rowley 
 

b. Request to receive a status update on the Five Year Capital Improvement Program 
and provide direction to staff:  Manager Duffield provided a brief summary of the item 
and answered any questions the Board had.  Director Barker would like to see the Solar 
Project moved up to make it a priority project. 
The report was received and filed. 
 

c. Request to receive and file an update on the status of Nacimiento Reservoir and 
implementation of the Emergency Water Shortage Regulations and Staged Water Use 
Reduction Plan:  Manager Duffield provided a brief summary of the item and answered 
any questions the Board had. 
The report was received and filed.  
 

d. Request to receive letters of interest submitted for the upcoming vacancy on the Board of 
Directors and consider appointment:  Manager Duffield provided a brief summary of the item.  
He reported that the Board had received one letter of interest, from current Director Devin Capps.  
Director Cousineau expressed the importance of Directors attending trainings to better 
understand what is expected of a Director.  Director Rowley expressed the importance of Director 
attendance and involvement in meetings. 



Minutes October 18, 2018 
   Page 2 of 2 

Director Burgess made a motion appointing Devin Capps to the vacant seat on the Board with a 
two-year term starting in December 2018.  Director Barker seconded the motion.  The motion 
passed by the following roll-call vote: 
Ayes: Barker, Burgess, Cousineau 
Noes: Rowley 
 

4. CONSENT ITEMS 
a. Regular Meeting Minutes: Receive/approve minutes of regular meeting of September 20, 2018. 
b. Warrant Register: Receive/approve September 2018 warrants. 
c. Treasurer’s Report: Receive/file September 2018 report. 
d. Fiscal Report: Receive/file September 2018 status report. 
e. Manager’s Report: Receive/file September 2018 report. 
f. Staff Reports: Receive/file September 2018 reports. 

Director Barker pulled items E and F (Manager and Staff Reports).  Director Barker made a motion 
to approve items A – D as presented.  Director Cousineau seconded the motion.  The motion 
passed by a unanimous voice vote: 

Ayes: Barker, Burgess, Capps, Cousineau, Rowley 

Manager Duffield provided a brief summary of item E (Manager’s Report) and answered any 
questions the Board had.  Operations Manager Molinari provided a brief summary of item F 
(Operation’s Report) and answered any questions the Board had. 

Director Cousineau made a motion to approve items E and F as presented.  Director Barker 
seconded the motion.  The motion passed by a unanimous voice vote: 

Ayes: Barker, Burgess, Capps, Cousineau, Rowley 
 

5. DIRECTORS/MANAGER COMMENTS 
None 
 

6. ADJOURNMENT 
On a motion by Director Cousineau and seconded by Director Barker, the meeting adjourned at 5:45 
pm to the next scheduled meeting on Thursday, November 15, 2018 at 4:00 pm. 
 

 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 

         ATTEST:  
_____________________________     
Martin Rowley, Board President     

____________________________ 
Kristen Gelos, Board Secretary 



HERITAGE RANCH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
OCTOBER 2018 WARRANT REGISTER

DATE NAME OF PAYEE DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
10/1/2018 AT&T TELEPHONE & INTERNET 235.31$          
10/1/2018 BAUTISTA'S CLEANING SERVICE STRUCTURES & GROUNDS 180.00$          
10/2/2018 INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE FEDERAL WITHHOLDING TAXES 2,277.40$       
10/2/2018 INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE FICA WITHIHOLDING 68.20$            
10/2/2018 INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE MEDICARE 705.72$          
10/2/2018 EDD SDI 237.84$          
10/2/2018 EDD STATE WITHHOLDING 835.78$          
10/2/2018 CALPERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM PERS RETIREMENT U/L 4,750.86$       
10/2/2018 CALPERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM PERS RETIREMENT U/L 85.79$            
10/3/2018 CALPERS HEALTH BENEFITS CALPERS HEALTH BENEFITS 13,873.40$    
10/3/2018 CALPERS HEALTH BENEFITS EMPLOYEE PAID HEALTH BENEFIT 444.00$          
10/3/2018 CALPERS HEALTH BENEFITS EMPLOYEE PAID HEALTH BENEFIT 444.00$          
10/5/2018 CALPERS 457 DEFFERED COMP PROG PERS 457- DEFFERED COMP. 1,187.00$       
10/5/2018 CALPERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM PERS RETIREMENT 2,920.43$       
10/5/2018 CALPERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM PERS RETIREMENT TIER 2 778.07$          
10/5/2018 CALPERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM PERS RETIREMENT PEPRA 192.50$          
10/5/2018 CALPERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM SURVIVOR BENEFIT 6.51$              
10/8/2018 PG&E ELECTRICITY 21,451.43$    
10/10/2018 GREAT WESTERN ALARM ALARM/ANSWERING SERVICE 288.75$          
10/10/2018 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC MAINTENANCE FIXED EQUIPMENT 54.07$            
10/10/2018 CONSOLIDATED ELECTRICAL DISTRI MAINT. FIXED EQUIP./SUPPLIES 158.78$          
10/10/2018 CRYSTAL SPRINGS WATER LAB TESTING 9.84$              
10/10/2018 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES SUPPLIES/SM TOOLS/FIXED EQUIP. 292.17$          
10/10/2018 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES SM TOOLS/CHEM/SUPPLIES/FIXEQUP 260.02$          
10/10/2018 USA BLUEBOOK LAB TESTING 197.07$          
10/10/2018 BRENNTAG PACIFIC, INC CHEMICALS 5,654.19$       
10/10/2018 THE BLUEPRINTER OFFICE TENANT IMPROVEMENT 49.78$            
10/10/2018 FGL ENVIRONMENTAL LAB TESTING 65.00$            
10/10/2018 FGL ENVIRONMENTAL LAB TESTING 69.00$            
10/10/2018 MULTI W SYSTEMS LS5 PMPS/CNTRL 4,033.12$       
10/10/2018 CAL COAST IRRIGATION, INC. MAINTENANCE FIXED EQUIPMENT 85.23$            
10/10/2018 STAR DRUG TESTING, INC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 45.00$            
10/10/2018 FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT COMPUTER SOFTWARE 240.00$          
10/10/2018 NAPA AUTO PARTS MAINTENANCE FIXED EQUIPMENT 17.22$            
10/10/2018 ABALONE COAST ANALYTICAL, INC. LAB TESTING 868.00$          
10/10/2018 U.S. BANK TRAINING & TRAVEL 55.80$            
10/10/2018 U.S. BANK TRAINING & TRAVEL 75.90$            
10/10/2018 U.S. BANK TRAINING & TRAVEL 54.34$            
10/10/2018 U.S. BANK MAINTENANCE FIXED EQUIPMENT 1,769.86$       
10/10/2018 U.S. BANK SMALL TOOLS & EQUIP/CHEMICALS 118.48$          
10/10/2018 U.S. BANK MAINTENANCE FIXED EQUIPMENT 371.00$          
10/10/2018 U.S. BANK MAINTENANCE FIXED EQUIPMENT 126.16$          
10/10/2018 U.S. BANK SMALL TOOLS & EQUIPMENT 62.50$            

PACIFIC PREMIER BANK WARRANTS

Page 1 of 3



HERITAGE RANCH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
OCTOBER 2018 WARRANT REGISTER

DATE NAME OF PAYEE DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
10/10/2018 U.S. BANK VEHICLES 49.75$            
10/10/2018 LOWE'S SMALL TOOLS & EQUIP/SUPPLIES 67.98$            
10/10/2018 LOWE'S MAINTENANCE FIXED EQUIPMENT 5.78$              
10/10/2018 DATA PROSE LLC SEPT. BILLING / LATE NOTICES 1,782.47$       
10/10/2018 SCOTT DUFFIELD MEDICAL REIMBURSEMENTS 145.82$          
10/10/2018 WESTERN EXTERMINATOR COMPANY STRUCTURES & GROUNDS 86.00$            
10/10/2018 RIVAL TECHNOLOGY INC. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 50.00$            
10/10/2018 VINEYARD MECHANICAL VEHICLES 564.63$          
10/10/2018 J.H. SMITH CONSULTING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 420.00$          
10/11/2018 J.B. DEWAR. INC. FUEL & OIL 420.75$          
10/12/2018 R. BRINK NET PAYROLL 2,185.48$       
10/12/2018 J. MOLINARI NET PAYROLL 2,930.85$       
10/12/2018 R. ARNOLD NET PAYROLL 2,161.47$       
10/12/2018 J. PRITCHETT NET PAYROLL 2,005.89$       
10/12/2018 K. GELOS NET PAYROLL 2,254.57$       
10/12/2018 S. DUFFIELD NET PAYROLL 3,183.13$       
10/12/2018 S. BRENNEMAN NET PAYROLL 1,479.23$       
10/16/2018 INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE FEDERAL WITHHOLDING TAXES 2,086.20$       
10/16/2018 INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE MEDICARE 665.10$          
10/16/2018 EDD SDI 229.35$          
10/16/2018 EDD STATE WITHHOLDING 758.62$          
10/19/2018 CALPERS 457 DEFFERED COMP PROG PERS 457- DEFFERED COMP. 1,187.00$       
10/19/2018 CALPERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM EMPLOYER'S CONTRIBUTION 18.61$            
10/19/2018 CALPERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM PERS RETIREMENT 2,920.43$       
10/19/2018 CALPERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM PERS RETIREMENT TIER 2 778.07$          
10/19/2018 CALPERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM PERS RETIREMENT PEPRA 192.50$          
10/19/2018 CALPERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM SURVIVOR BENEFIT 6.51$              
10/19/2018 AT&T TELEPHON/INTERNET 154.29$          
10/23/2018 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS INTERNET 79.99$            
10/23/2018 WALLACE GROUP CONSULTING & ENGINEERING 742.61$          
10/23/2018 WALLACE GROUP PLAN CHECK - TR 3110 285.00$          
10/23/2018 ADAMSKI, MOROSKI, MADDEN, CUMB LEGAL & ATTORNEY 1,272.00$       
10/23/2018 RYAN BRINK CELL / INTERNET ALLOWANCE 80.00$            
10/23/2018 BRENNTAG PACIFIC, INC CHEMICALS 2,596.04$       
10/23/2018 FGL ENVIRONMENTAL LAB TESTING 969.00$          
10/23/2018 JASON MOLINARI CELL / INTERNET ALLOWANCE 80.00$            
10/23/2018 ASSOCIATED BACKFLOW SERVICES MAINTENANCE FIXED EQUIPMENT 914.00$          
10/23/2018 ROY ARNOLD CELL / INTERNET ALLOWANCE 80.00$            
10/23/2018 ABSOLUTE STANDARDS INC LAB TESTING 260.00$          
10/23/2018 LAHR ELECTRIC MOTORS, INC MAINTENANCE FIXED EQUIPMENT 1,703.62$       
10/23/2018 FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 160.00$          
10/23/2018 NAPA AUTO PARTS VEHICLES 83.27$            
10/23/2018 KRISTEN GELOS CELL / INTERNET ALLOWANCE 40.00$            
10/23/2018 JAMES A. PRITCHETT CELL / INTERNET ALLOWANCE 80.00$            
10/23/2018 MEDPOST URGENT CARE - PASO ROB PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 35.00$            

Page 2 of 3



HERITAGE RANCH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
OCTOBER 2018 WARRANT REGISTER

DATE NAME OF PAYEE DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
10/23/2018 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 90.00$            
10/23/2018 FLUID SCREEN PRINTING UNIFORMS 129.60$          
10/23/2018 SCOTT DUFFIELD CELL / INTERNET ALLOWANCE 40.00$            
10/23/2018 SIGNE RODEN FINAL ACCOUNT CRED 31.98$            
10/23/2018 DC LACY EXCAVATING HYD. CREDIT 17.10$            
10/23/2018 COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO PLAN CHECK 672.73$          
10/23/2018 CITY OF PASO ROBLES PASO ROBLES BASIN GSP 1,241.43$       
10/26/2018 R. BRINK NET PAYROLL 2,435.03$       
10/26/2018 J. MOLINARI NET PAYROLL 2,861.83$       
10/26/2018 R. ARNOLD NET PAYROLL 2,062.03$       
10/26/2018 J. PRITCHETT NET PAYROLL 2,109.75$       
10/26/2018 M. HUMPHREY NET PAYROLL 789.05$          
10/26/2018 K. GELOS NET PAYROLL 2,254.57$       
10/26/2018 D. BURGESS NET PAYROLL 92.35$            
10/26/2018 B. BARKER NET PAYROLL 92.35$            
10/26/2018 M. ROWLEY NET PAYROLL 92.35$            
10/26/2018 R. COUSINEAU NET PAYROLL 138.52$          
10/26/2018 S. DUFFIELD NET PAYROLL 3,350.00$       
10/26/2018 D. CAPPS NET PAYROLL 92.35$            
10/26/2018 S. BRENNEMAN NET PAYROLL 1,133.29$       
10/29/2018 AT&T TELEPHONE / INTERNET 236.19$          
10/30/2018 INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE FEDERAL WITHHOLDING TAXES 2,144.62$       
10/30/2018 INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE FICA WITHIHOLDING 68.20$            
10/30/2018 INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE MEDICARE 709.32$          
10/30/2018 EDD ETT 0.96$              
10/30/2018 EDD SDI 239.10$          
10/30/2018 EDD SUI 36.54$            
10/30/2018 EDD STATE WITHHOLDING 775.46$          

GRAND TOTAL FOR ALL WARRANTS 127,883.23$  

Page 3 of 3



HERITAGE RANCH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
TREASURER'S REPORT

OCTOBER 2018

SUMMARY REPORT OF ALL ACCOUNTS
Beginning Balance: 3,166,680.11$   
Ending Balance: 3,243,053.90$   
Variance: 76,373.79$       
Interest Earnings for the Month Reported:  16,091.80$       
Interest Earnings Fiscal Year-to-Date: 30,204.29$       

ANALYSIS OF REVENUES
Total operating income for water and sewer was: 135,403.63$     
Non-operating income was: 58,037.04$       
Franchise fees paid to the District by San Miguel Garbage was: 5,431.87$         
Interest earnings for the P.P.B. checking account was: 5.04$                
Interest earnings for the P.P.B. DWR Loan Services account was: -$                  
Interest earnings for the P.P.B. DWR Reserve account was: -$                  
Interest earnings for the P.P.B. SRF Loan Services account was: -$                  
Interest earnings for the P.P.B. SRF Reserve account was: -$                  
Interest earnings for the LAIF account was: 16,086.76$       

ANALYSIS OF EXPENSES
Pacific Premier Bank checking account total warrants, fees, and Electronic 
Fund Transfers was: 143,387.20$     

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
This report was prepared in accordance with the Heritage Ranch Community Services District 
Statement of Investment Policy. All investment activity was within policy limits. There are 
sufficient funds to meet the next 30 days obligations. Attached is a status report of all 
accounts and related bank statements.  

Page 1 of 2



HERITAGE RANCH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
STATUS REPORT FOR ALL ACCOUNTS

OCTOBER 2018

BEGINNING BALANCE ALL ACCOUNTS 3,166,680.11$  

OPERATING CASH IN DRAWER  $300.00

PACIFIC PREMIER BANK - CHECKING
BEGINNING BALANCE 9/30/2018 $93,301.99
DEPOSIT REVENUE & MISCELLANEOUS INCOME $188,984.19
INTEREST EARNED $5.04
TOTAL CHECKS, FEES AND EFT'S ($143,387.20)
TRANSFER TO LAIF ACCOUNT $0.00
ENDING BALANCE 10/31/2018 $138,904.02

PACIFIC PREMIER BANK DWR LOAN REPAYMENT (1994-2029):
LOAN SERVICES ACCOUNT
BEGINNING BALANCE 9/30/2018 $67.99
QUARTERLY DEPOSIT $0.00
INTEREST EARNED $0.00
SEMI-ANNUAL PAYMENT $0.00
ENDING BALANCE 10/31/2018 $67.99

PACIFIC PREMIER BANK DWR RESERVE ACCOUNT
BEGINNING BALANCE 9/30/2018 $112,736.62
INTEREST EARNED $0.00
ENDING BALANCE 10/31/2018 $112,736.62

PACIFIC PREMIER BANK SDWSRF LOAN SERVICES ACCOUNT
BEGINNING BALANCE 9/30/2018 $14,719.05
QUARTERLY DEPOSIT $14,685.00
INTEREST EARNED $0.00
SEMI-ANNUAL PAYMENT $0.00
ENDING BALANCE 10/31/2018 $29,404.05

PACIFIC PREMIER BANK SDWSRF RESERVE ACCOUNT
BEGINNING BALANCE 9/30/2018 $0.00
QUARTERLY DEPOSIT $0.00
INTEREST EARNED $0.00
ENDING BALANCE 10/31/2018 $0.00

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND (LAIF)
BEGINNING BALANCE 9/30/2018 $2,945,854.46
INTEREST EARNED $16,086.76
TRANSFER FROM PACIFIC PREMIER CHECKING $0.00
TRANSFER TO PACIFIC PREMIER CHECKING $0.00
ENDING BALANCE 10/31/2018 $2,961,941.22

ENDING BALANCE ALL ACCOUNTS $3,243,053.90
DIFFERENCE FROM LAST MONTH Increase $76,373.79

Page 2 of 2



HERITAGE RANCH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
QUARTERLY TREASURER'S 

REPORT FOR THE PERIOD OF 
JULY 1, 2018 – SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 

Page 1 of 2 

SUMMARY REPORT OF ALL ACCOUNTS 
 
Beginning Balance $ 3,199,276 
Ending Balance $ 3,166,680.11 
Variance $ -32,596 
Interest Earnings $ 14,112 

 
     
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 
This report was prepared in accordance with the HRCSD Statement of Investment Policy. All 
investment activity was within policy limits. There are sufficient funds to meet the next 180 days' 
obligations. Attached is a status report of all accounts and related bank statements. For more 
information contact the District Office. 
 
ACCOUNT PROFILE INFORMATION 
1. Operating cash in cash drawer:  Maintained to make change for cash transactions. 
 
2. Pacific Premier Bank Checking:  Variable interest-bearing checking account currently at 0.05%, 
at Pacific Premier branch in Paso Robles used for most of our transactions such as payroll, 
accounts receivable and accounts payable. Statements are received on a monthly basis. 
 
3. Pacific Premier Bank DWR loan repayments:  The Loan Services Account interest earnings 
rate is 0.25%.  Quarterly deposits are made into each account. Semi-annual payments are made 
from the Loan Services account by the bank, which functions as our fiscal agent, to DWR for 
repayment of a $2 million loan to partially finance our water treatment plant and water pumping 
facilities.  
 
4. Pacific Premier Bank DWR reserve:  The Reserve Account interest earnings rate is 0.25%.  
The purpose of the Reserve Account was to build up over ten years an amount equal to debt 
service for one year, a DWR requirement. Statements are received on a quarterly basis. 
 
5 . Pacific Premier Bank SDWSRF (Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Fund) loan repayments:  
The Loan Services Account interest earnings rate is 0.25%.  Quarterly deposits will be made into 
the Loan Services.  Semi-annual payments will be made from the Loan Services account by the 
bank, which functions as our fiscal agent, to SDWSRF for repayment of a $714,000 loan to finance 
upgrades at the water treatment plant.  The fund will provide for a twenty (20) year repayment 
period at a 1.7875 percent interest rate.   Statements are received on a quarterly basis. 
 
6. Pacific Premier Bank SDWSRF (Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Fund) reserve:  Quarterly 
deposits will be made into the Reserve Account.  The purpose of the Reserve Account is to build 
up over ten years an amount equal to two semiannual payments, which is based upon the 
estimated loan principal and interest rate.   
 
7. LAIF:  Local Agency Investment Fund, a variable interest-bearing investment fund administered 
by the California State Treasurer. The majority of our funds are retained in this account. The last 
reported interest rate was 2.16%.   Statements are received on a quarterly basis. 



 

Page 2 of 2 

INTEREST EARNINGS: TRENDS & PROJECTIONS 
The number of accounts in this report totals seven.  The interest earnings for those accounts are 
summarized below.  The accounts are referenced by number which corresponds with the Account 
Profile Information. 
 
SUMMARY OF INTEREST EARNINGS 
* Account Profile by Reference Number 
 

 Beginning 
Balance Total Debits Total Credits Interest 

Earnings 
Ending 
Balance 

1 300.00 - - 0.00 300.00 
2 74,684.37 -637,451.03 656,057.69 10.96 93,301.99 
3 55.39 -51,814.22 51,814.00 12.82 67.99 
4 112,665.60 0.00 0.00 71.02 112,736.62 
5 31.62 0.00 14,685.00 2.43 14,719.05 
6 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
7 3,011,839.20 -130,000.00 50,000.00 14,015.26 2,945,854.46 

TOTALS $3,199,576.18 ($819,265.25) $772,556.69 $14,112.49 $3,166,980.11 
 
Interest earnings in accounts 2, 3, 4, 5 & 6 above are always low because of account balance 
policies. Account 7 (LAIF) is the one account with more productive interest earnings because it 
typically holds over 90% of HRCSD cash reserves.  Interest rates continue to fluctuate and remain 
low. 
 
MANAGEMENT BY CONTRACTED PARTIES 
For the reporting period, only the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) is held under the 
Management By Contracted Parties. 
 
LAIF is a treasury of pooled money made up of deposits from many of the over 5,000 local 
agencies within California. More than $25 billion is vested in a variety of ways with a cumulative 
net yield of a conservative nature. State law requires, and the LAIF Pooled Money Investment 
Board requires that pooled money first be invested in such a manner to realize the maximum 
return consistent with safe and prudent management after which yield is considered. In other 
words, because these are public moneys invested and managed by others, the investments are 
low risk, low yield. 
 
HRCSD typically has most of its cash (over 90%) deposited in LAIF. This is common strategy with 
many local agencies in the state, especially those with cash reserves of less than $5 million. 
Complete reports of all investment activity, etc. are received from the LAIF Board on a monthly 
basis, along with an annual report, which are available for inspection at the District office. In 
addition, an analysis is provided in our Status Report of All Accounts for our share of LAIF deposits 
on a monthly basis. 



Budget Actual Actual Percentage
OPERATING INCOME  FY 18/19 October Year to Date Year to Date Variance Explanation

Water Fees 901,000 83,276 366,005 41%
Sewer Fees 594,950 47,855 190,691 32%
Hook-Up Fees 6,000 0 3,000 50% Fluctuates based on activity
Turn on Fees 3,500 250 1,075 31%
Late Fees 16,500 1,522 6,112 37%
Plan Check & Inspection 10,000 2,500 7,500 75% Check./Insp. Deposit TR3110
Miscellaneous Income 2,000 0 875 44%

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME $1,533,950 $135,404 $575,258 38%

FRANCHISE INCOME
Solid Waste Franchise Fees 66,000 5,432 23,228 35%

TOTAL FRANCHISE REVENUE $66,000 $5,432 $23,228 35%

NON-OPERATING INCOME
Standby Charges 242,921 12,690 12,690 5%
Property Tax 341,000 29,256 40,014 12%
Interest 27,000 16,092 30,204 112% Fluctuates based on activity
Connection Fees 70,250 0 36,213 52% Fluctuates based on activity

TOTAL NON-OPERATING INCOME $681,171 $58,037 $119,121 17%

RESERVE REVENUE
Capital Reserves 23,000 5,275 9,458 41%
General Reserves 50,000 50 1,335 3%

TOTAL RESERVE REVENUE $73,000 $5,324 $10,793 15%

TOTAL ALL INCOME $2,354,121 $204,197 $728,401 31%

HERITAGE RANCH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT - CONSOLIDATED BUDGET
2018/19 Budget

Page 1



OPERATING EXPENSES

Budget Actual Actual Percentage
SALARIES AND BENEFITS  FY 18/19 October Year to Date Year to Date Variance Explanation

Salaries 654,697 44,678 209,222 32%
Health Insurance 120,616 9,454 42,624 35%
Health Insurance - Retiree 58,233 5,119 20,483 35%
PERS 123,796 9,257 37,418 30%
Standby 12,500 925 3,990 32%
Overtime 11,500 474 2,276 20%
Workers Comp. Ins. 22,675 0 19,924 88% Paid Annually
Directors' Fees 7,000 550 1,900 27%
Medicare/FICA 10,014 1,108 3,320 33%
Car Allowance 3,000 250 1,000 33%
SUI/ETT 1,500 0 0 0%
Uniforms 3,800 130 860 23%

TOTAL SALARIES & BENEFITS $1,029,331 $71,945 $343,016 33%

UTILITIES 
Electricity 242,800 21,451 71,988 30%
Propane 900 0 0 0%
Water Purchase 23,114 0 11,557 50% Paid Semiannually
Telephone/Internet 11,830 1,106 3,327 28%

TOTAL UTILITIES EXPENSE $278,644 $22,557 $86,872 31%

MAINTENANCE & SUPPLIES
Chemicals 68,000 8,409 28,856 42%
Computer/Software 7,000 240 2,879 41%
Equip. Rental/Lease 1,000 0 70 7%
Fixed Equip. 85,000 5,315 12,866 15%
Fuel & Oil 12,000 421 3,549 30%
Lab Testing 24,500 2,438 7,703 31%
Office Supplies 3,000 0 250 8%
Parks & Recreation 500 0 68 14%
Struct./Grnds. 6,500 831 2,052 32%
Small Tools/Equip. 3,500 420 623 18%
Supplies 6,000 114 1,617 27%
Meters/Equip. 5,000 0 2,639 53% Fluctuates based on activity
Vehicles 8,500 133 1,526 18%

TOTAL MAINT. & SUPPLY EXPENSE $230,500 $18,319 $64,697 28%

HERITAGE RANCH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT - CONSOLIDATED BUDGET
2018/19 Budget

Page 2



Budget Actual Actual Percentage
GENERAL & ADMINISTRATION  FY 18/19 October Year to Date Year to Date Variance Explanation

Ads./Advertising 1,500 0 962 64% Fluctuates based on activity
Alarm/Answering Service 3,275 289 855 26%
Audit 6,000 0 0 0%
Bank Charges/Fees 2,000 195 752 38%
Consulting/Engineering 40,000 743 2,084 5%
Dues/Subscription 12,000 0 150 1%
Elections 1,000 0 0 0%
Insurance 22,525 0 25,768 114% Paid Annually
LAFCO 8,000 0 7,015 88% Paid Annually
Legal/Attorney 17,000 1,272 2,568 15%
Licenses/Permits 26,000 0 90 0%
Plan Check & Inspection 10,000 958 958 10%
Postage/Billing 20,000 1,782 6,345 32%
Professional Service 16,000 800 5,740 36%
Tax Collection 5,300 0 0 0%
Staff Training & Travel 5,000 186 353 7%
Board Training & Travel 1,500 0 25 2%

TOTAL G & A $197,100 $6,225 $53,665 27%

CAPITAL PROJECTS & EQUIPMENT
Structures/Improvements 65,000 1,291 6,408 10%
Equipment 8,000 4,033 4,385 55%

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSE $73,000 5,324 10,793 15%

DEBT
State Loan Payment 103,629 0 51,814 50% paid semiannually
State Loan Payment Phase II 58,740 0 0 0% paid semiannually

TOTAL DEBT $162,369 $0 $51,814

FUNDED DEPRECIATION $288,000 $24,000 $96,000 33%
UNFUNDED DEPRECIATION $0 $0 $0 0%

TOTAL EXPENSE $2,258,944 $148,371 $706,857 31%

CONNECTION FEES TRANSFER $70,250 $0 $36,213 52%

SOLID WASTE FEES TRANSFER $29,222 $2,677 $9,854 34%

FUND TOTAL ($4,295) $53,149 ($24,524)

2018/19 Budget
HERITAGE RANCH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT - CONSOLIDATED BUDGET

Page 3



X:\Scott\Administration\Manager Report\2018\Manager Report 11152018.docx 

HERITAGE RANCH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

Manager Report 
For October and start of November 2018 

 
 
Basin Boundary Modification Request 
 
The Manager submitted a Basin Boundary Modification Request (BBMR) by June 30, 
2018, which was the original due date from DWR.  DWR subsequently extended the due 
date multiple times which finally ending up being September 30, 2018.  They are now 
reviewing the requests and according to their website draft basin boundary modifications 
will be released and a 30-day public comment period opens in “Winter 2018”.   
 
DWR did request additional information from the District.  The Manager and our 
consultant, GSI, prepared a response and uploaded it to the DWR BBMR portal as 
required.   
 
Monterey County Water Resource Agency (MCWRA) 
 
Reservoir Operations Committee 
 
The October 25th meeting of MCWRA’s Reservoir Operations Committee was held in our 
Board room.  The District led a tour of our intake facilities and Water Treatment Plant after 
the meeting.      
 
Nacimiento Dam Inundation Exercise 
 
The Manager was approached by MCWRA several months ago if we would be interested 
in participating in a Nacimiento Dam Inundation Functional Exercise organized and 
managed by the Monterey County Office of Emergency Services.  I understand exercises 
like this are required by FERC every five years.  This exercise was an all-day event and 
involved approximately 70-80 participants both in the Monterey County EOS center and 
in the field.  The Manager’s role was that of an “evaluator” observing the exercise at the 
EOS center.   
 
The institutional knowledge shared and gained during both events was significant and 
networking opportunities like this keep our relationships with Monterey County positive. 
 
Audit upcoming 
 
For the Board’s information and as a look ahead, the FY 2017/18 Audit is almost 
complete.  The District Auditor, Crosby Company will present this item at the December 
Board of Director’s meeting. 
 

* * * 



Operations Report 
 October 2018 

 
Water Treatment: 
13.9 Million gallons of water was treated. 
 
Manganese  levels  in  the  Nacimiento  River  are  still  elevated.  Incoming  manganese  ranges 
between 0.50 and 0.60 milligram per  liter  (mg/L) and must be reduced below a 0.05 mg/L to 
comply  with  the  secondary  maximum  contaminant  level.  Staff  has  consistently  maintained 
treated water manganese levels in the .015 mg/L range for an average reduction of 97% between 
raw water and treated water. Staff will continue to monitor manganese levels and removal on a 
daily basis.  
 
Each  quarter,  the  District  is  required  to  sample  for  disinfection  byproducts.  Disinfection 
byproducts are formed when water containing organics is chlorinated. The Nacimiento River does 
contain elevated levels of organics and the Districts’ water treatment process uses chlorine for 
disinfection  resulting  in  disinfection  byproducts.  Exposure  to  high  levels  of  disinfection 
byproducts  over  a  long  period  of  time  is  thought  to  contribute  to  cancer.  For  this  reason, 
quarterly sampling is mandated with compliance determined by specific limitations. The District 
collected its’ third quarter disinfection byproducts samples in October and the results are well 
below the maximum contaminant level. The next quarterly sample will be collected in January 
2019. 
 
Wastewater Treatment: 
2.82 Million gallons of wastewater was treated.  
 
There are hundreds of sewer manholes located throughout the Districts’ sewer collection system. 
Manholes  allow  for  inspection  and  maintenance  activities  to  be  performed.  Recently,  staff 
noticed a manhole in the green belt behind Brook Lane was below grade and covered with two 
feet  of  dirt.  Staff  removed  the  dirt  and  used  two,  one‐foot  high  concrete  rings  to  raise  the 
manhole to grade height. Raising the manhole will insure that it does not get covered again and 
will also allow access for maintenance activities. 
 
Staff completed and submitted the 3rd Quarter Time Schedule Order (TSO) Report to the Regional 
Board. The TSO allows the District a set amount of time to come into compliance for ammonia, 
nitrate and copper. The 3rd Quarter Report is very comprehensive and covers sampling, sample 
results, operational changes and future efforts toward compliance. The 4th Quarter Report is due 
by February 1st, 2019. 
 
The effluent force main takes water from Pond 2 and delivers it to final disposal site located at 
the  Districts’  220‐acre  parcel.  Recently,  a  leak  was  found  in  the  force  main  located  on  the 
maintenance shop road. Staff excavated the force main and found a previous repair had failed. 
The  failed  piece  was  removed  and  replaced  with  new  pipe  and  couplings.  Staff  expects  to 
complete the repair within the week.   
 



HERITAGE RANCH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  
OCTOBER 2018 OFFICE REPORT 

 

 

Water & Sewer  

On November 1st, we processed 1,890 bills for a total dollar amount of $130,484 for water 
and sewer user fees for the month of October. The number of Automatic Drafts processed 
was 496 for a total dollar amount of $33,618.  On October 26th we processed 241 Late 
Notices.   

 

San Miguel Garbage Franchise Fees 

Each month, the District receives franchise fees from the previous month.   
The breakdown is as follows: 
 

Month of September 

Garbage Collection (10%) - $ 5,132.17 

Roll-Off Collection (10%) - $ 299.70 

Total Franchise Fees Collected - $ 5,431.87 

 

Service Orders Completed 

Staff completed a total of 64 service orders for the month of September.  Below is a 
breakdown by job code. 
 
USA 7 Dirty Water Complaint 2 
Lock Meter 14 Occupant Change 9 
Hydrant Meter 1 Pressure Check 3 
Unlock Meter 10 Courtesy Turn-Off 3 
Call-Out 9 Leak 3 
Misc. 1 Sewer Inspection 1 
Cal Fire Pressure Check 1 Backflow Reported 1 

 
 
 
  


	3a GSP Draft Chapters
	MEMO BOD_Chapter 4-5
	Recommendation
	Background
	These draft documents are posted on the District’s website as well as on the GSP project website at www.pasogcp.com.
	Comments from the public are being collected using a comment form. The form can be found online at www.pasogcp.com.  A paper form to submit by postal mail is also available at the District office.
	Fiscal Considerations

	October 11, 2018
	Published on:
	October 17, 2018
	Received by the Paso Basin Cooperative Committee:
	October 24, 2018
	Posted on PasoGCP.com:
	December 10, 2018
	Close of 45-day public comment period:

	Paso Robles_GSP_Chap 4_Oct10
	CHAPTER 4. Hydrogeologic Conceptual Model
	4.1 Subbasin Topography and Boundaries
	4.2 Soils Infiltration Potential
	4.3 Regional Geology
	4.3.1 Regional Geologic Structures
	4.3.2 Geologic Formations Within the Subbasin
	Alluvium
	Paso Robles Formation

	4.3.3 Geologic Formations Surrounding the Subbasin
	Pancho Rico Formation
	Santa Margarita Formation
	Monterey Formation
	Vaqueros Formation
	Metamorphic and Granitic Rocks


	4.4 Principal Aquifers and Aquitards
	4.4.1 Alluvial Aquifer
	4.4.2 Paso Robles Formation Aquifer
	4.4.3 Aquifer Properties
	4.4.4 Confining Beds and Geologic Structures

	4.5 Primary Users of Groundwater
	4.6 General Water Quality
	4.7 Groundwater Recharge and Discharge Areas
	4.7.1 Groundwater Recharge Areas Inside The Subbasin
	4.7.2 Groundwater Discharge Areas Inside the Subbasin

	4.8 Surface Water Bodies
	4.9 Data Gaps in the Hydrogeologic Conceptual Model
	Aquifer Continuity
	Fault Influence on Groundwater Flow
	Vertical Groundwater Gradients



	Draft Paso Robles_GSP_Chap 5_Oct_10_18
	CHAPTER 5. Groundwater Conditions
	5.1 Groundwater Elevations
	5.1.1 Alluvial Aquifer
	5.1.1.1  Alluvial Aquifer Groundwater Elevation Contours and horizontal groundwater gradients
	5.1.1.1  Alluvial Aquifer Hydrographs

	5.1.2 Paso Robles Formation Aquifer
	5.1.2.1  Paso Robles Aquifer Groundwater elevation contours and                 horizontal groundwater gradients
	5.1.2.2  Paso Robles formation Aquifer Hydrographs

	5.1.3 Vertical Groundwater Gradients

	5.2 Change in Groundwater Storage
	5.2.1 Alluvial Aquifer
	5.2.2 Paso Robles Formation Aquifer

	5.3 Seawater Intrusion
	5.4 Subsidence
	5.5 Interconnected Surface Water
	5.5.1 Depletion of interconnected surface water

	5.6 Groundwater Quality Distribution and Trends
	5.6.1 Groundwater Quality Suitability for Drinking Water
	5.6.2 Groundwater Quality Suitability for Agricultural Irrigation
	5.6.3 Distribution and Concentrations of Point Sources             of Groundwater Constituents
	5.6.4 Distribution and Concentrations of Diffuse or              Natural Groundwater Constituents
	5.6.4.1  Total Dissolved Solids
	5.6.4.1  Chloride
	5.6.4.2  Sulfate
	5.6.4.3  Nitrate
	5.6.4.4  Boron
	5.6.4.5  Gross Alpha Radiation

	5.6.5 Groundwater Quality Surrounding the Paso Robles Subbasin




	Binder2
	3b WTP Actuators
	BOD MEMO_WTP Actuators Nov 2018
	Recommendation
	Background

	Discussion
	Fiscal Implications


	Actuator Replacement Cost Spreadsheet
	Sheet1


	3c Surplus Property
	MEMO BOD_Surplus property 10292018
	Recommendation
	Background

	Discussion
	Fiscal Considerations


	RESO_Surplus Property
	Exhibit A - Surplus Property
	Surplus property Nov 2018
	Surplus property pics


	4a 10.18.18-Minutes
	4b October 2018 Warrant Register
	2018

	4c October 2018 Treasurers Report
	Summary
	Monthly Report

	4d 9-30-18 Quarterly Treasurer's Report
	4e October 2018 Fiscal Report
	Consolidated

	4f October 2018 Manager Report
	4g1 October 2018 Operations Report
	4g2 October 2018 Office Report




